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also impacted our Capital Markets business during the
year.

Chairman's statement

Nevertheless, we saw a relatively quick rebound in the
202O, which has provided for a solid

latter months of

commercial footing for 202L.
The Bank continued to meet all of its Regulatory
obligations in terms of Capital and Liquidity during this

turbulent period.
The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) carried out a
review of the 2019 Audit performed by Mazar's which
revealed some areas where improvement was required.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee took note of

these comments, particularly in relation to Expected
Credit Loss and communicated them to the new
auditors who performed the 2020 audit, and they took
account of the FRC review in their audit scope.

David Suratgar
2020 was an unprecedented year for the World due to
the COVID-19 pandemic coupled with the protracted

affects of BREXIT negotiations which dragged on. The
resultant upheaval and effects across the UK and the
globe has had a detrimental effect on all aspects of life.
Yet BMCE managed to weather the storms and come
out relatively unscathed, I am please to be able to
report the Bank was able to achieve profitability.

Finally, I would like to express, on behalf of the Board
my gratitude to all the staff at the Bank for their
dedication and agility in these unprecedented times. I
would also express my gratitude to the unwavering
support of our Shareholder, the Bank of Africa Group
and my Board colleagues.
On the 20th July 2021 , the banks board passed a
resolution to change the name from BMCE Bank

lnternational United Kingdom Plc to Bank Of Africa
United Kingdom Plc

Despite the challenges created by the COVID-19
pandemic and associated restrictions on movement and
the health and safety measure introduced by the
Government, the Bank managed to overcome this
significant challenge to its operations. The transition
from working from home rather than the office were
seamless. The underlying commercial impact on the
Bank was not as severe as we first anticipated, however
origination capability particularly in our Trade Finance
business and in particular transactions originated from
markets that were oil producing is where we saw most
of the impact.

Additionally, the Bank was acutely impacted for a period
of time by certain African country down grades which

m,

lJ'
.,'1

and Firm's Culture to strength our organisation. We have
also achieved to be one of the few banks where the
numbers of female and male senior managers are equal.

Chief Executive Officer's review

We have also, of course, still have much to do but as an
organization we have become more open to change and
nimble in our approach. A sustained and consistent
execution is paramount to improving our productivity,
streamlining our processes, controlling our operating
expenses, attract talent and ultimately improve our cost
of funds and our profitability.

Conclusion and outlook
We are making strides in improving the way we operate
and preparing our institution to achieve its target being a
full Commercial lnvestment Bank . There is still much to
be done and external conditions are likely to be more
challenging in the near-term considering: inflation,
market expectations of higher interest rates and the
Covid-19 pandemic which still comes with unpredictable
human and economic consequences.

Houssam El Hak Morssi Barakat

2020 was an unprecedented year and was extremely
challenging not only for the Bank but for the world as
whole. The Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant
impact, to name just a few examples:
I

The Covid-19 pandemic had a significant impact on our
forecast for 2O2t in terms of Return on Equity target and

income growth.

a

As an institution, we are playing a key role and we

Since mid-March, contingency work from home plans
were invoked resulting in most of the employees
working from home and this including Paris, Dubai and
Zurich offices.
The business flow, mainly trade finance, have
significantly decreased

continue to support our core clients and finance
international trade during these volatile times. We also
support our employees and community as evidenced by
the latest financial contribution of circa USD 100 million
equivalent by our Parent company, BMCE Bank Group, to
assist the most vulnerable impacted by Covid-19.
Against this backdrop, our strength, our resilience
coupled by the opportunities post pandemic the Bank will
continue to thrive and meet its strategic objectives.

Our portfolio experienced a significant increase in
expected credit losses, principally as a result of
specific African country downgrades
Despite the difficult environment which led to a drop in
net operating income by t3% and increase in expected
credit losses, which almost doubled relative to prepandemic levels, the Bank has been resilient and
managed to stay profitable.

More importantly, the Bank laid the foundations for
getting the best from 2O2L. The strategy put in place in
repositioning the customer at the heart of everything
helped to absorb the shock of the pandemic in 2020 and
provided for the bank to have strong commercial footing
at the start of 2021.
We continue to secure our foundations and resolve
legacy operational issues to unleash our full potential and
execute our strategic priorities.
We have also undertaken several actions on Governance

/'a
iq
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Strategic Report

Credit Committee
Compliance Committee

The Directors present their Strategic Report for BANK
OF AFRICA United Kingdom plc ("the Bank" or "BoA
UK", formerly known as BMCE Bank lnternational UK
PLC) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Our Strategic priorities and progress

O

Orgorirotion of governing bodies

The governance structure of the Bank remains
unchanged and is represented by the following
bodies:

.

The Board of Directors consisting of six NonExecutive Directors of which three are
independent Non-Executives and the Chief
Executive Officer, and others regularly attended
including the CFO, CRO, COO and the Head of
lnternal Audit. The Board approves the overall
strategy and the broad guidelines of BoA UK.

@

eort Brexit Plon

The United Kingdom finally withdrew from the
European Union on 31 January 2020 and entered an
lmplementation Period which ended on 31 December
2020. As part ofthe contingency plansthe Bank
applied and received a third country licence for its
Paris Branch.

@

Comptionce Remediation Plan

BoA UK has successfully established an improved and
effective KYC process and revisited its new account
opening procedures.

On 31 March 2021, Timothy George Plews was
appointed as an independent non-executive
director. On l June 2021, Mohammed Agoumi
resigned.

The Risk Committee consists of two non-executive
Directors. The CRO has a standing invitation. Other
members of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer,
the Chief Financial Officer and the Head of lnternal
Audit are invited. The Risk Committee monitors
and assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management policies and processes. lt
monitors the full range of risks, financial and nonfinancial, including credit, market, liquidity,
funding, capital, operational and regulatory risks.
The Audit Committee consists of two NonExecutive Directors. The Head of lnternal Audit has
a standing invitation, The Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer, other members of the
Board, and Departmental Heads, example, the
CFO, the CRO , the Head of compliance are
regularly invited. The committee monitors the
adequacy and effectiveness of controls, processes,
governance, integrity of financial statements and
objectivity of internal and external auditors.

The Remuneration Committee is headed by a nonexecutive Director. According to best practices,
this committee is established to ensure that
remuneration arrangements support our business
strategic aims and enable the recruitment,
motivation and retention of senior executives,
whilst also complying with the requirements of
regulation.

Other committees involved in the decision-making
processes of BoA UK are:
Executive Committee
Asset and Liability committee

m,

@

ornoi & zurich Licences

The Bank obtained a licence for the Dubai branch in
March 2020, while Zurich's licence to convert to a
branch is still ongoing.

@ arni"r".ent of business objectives
. Our long-term success relies on generating value
through:

1.
2.

Continuing sales-oriented efforts towards Africa.

Protecting our business with improved controls
and strong compliance & risk management
processes.

.
.

Commercial efforts: The Bank, due to the Covid-l9
pandemic ceased all sponsorship and in person
attendance of meetings related to business in
Africa.
Group Synergies: Capitalising on the BMCE Bank of

Africa brand for the acquisition of new customers
and continually being a key player for creating
synergies within the BMCE Bank of Africa Group.
Several successful combined transactions with
other entities of the Group generated substantial
revenues at Group level. We are still developing
our network and co-financing projects with other
subsidiaries of BMCE Bank of Africa. We are still
expecting strong benefits from Group synergies for
both of the components "Buy Side" and "Sell Side".

Strategic Report (continued)

@

financial and operational performance as well as
information covering areas such as key risks, legal and
regulatory compliance. The board gets this information
through reports sent in advance of each board
meeting and presentations at board meetings.

nrni"r",nettt of business objectives

Diversification: Emphasising the geographic and
sectoral diversification of our "Target Market". BoA
UK diversified its sources of funding including other
banks outside the BMCE Group and in taking more
deposits from corporate customers.
Risks: Maintaining

approved by

As a result of this, the Board has a broader overview of
engagement with stakeholders, and other indices that
enables the Directors to comply with their legal duty
under section 172 of the Companies act.

Employees

the level of "Risk Appetite" as

the Board. BoA UK Risk

Our people are at the heart of our business and BoA
UK behavior is aligned with the expectation of our

Appetite

remains unchanged, and we have kept strong risk
management practices with risk limits aligned to a
carefully considered business strategy.

staff, ln order for our business to thrive, the Bank
manages its people's performance, develops talents
and maintains highest level of culture, engagement
and inclusiveness. The Bank regularly provides
employees with information on matters of concern to
them especially update on Covid-19 pandemic and the
support the Bank could offer where necessary. Also,
employees were provided resources to work remotely
in light of government restrictions and to safeguard
their health. The Bank is also an equal opportunities
employer and committed to equality and diversity.

Focusing on continuous enhancement of our
system of governance and control to ensure that
we are operating in an efficient manner.

Directors' Duties and Engagement with
Stakeholders - Section 172 Statement
The Directors present the statement describing how
they have complied with the matters set out in section
I72 of Companies Act 2006 when performing their
duty to promote the success of the company. This
statement considers how the directors have managed
with and had regard to the interest of stakeholders.

Customers
The Bank adopts a relationship-based banking mode
with a team of highly experienced relationship
managers that interact with our customers regularly.
This underpins the fact that our customers are
considered as being at the center of everything we do.
As part of this customers were informed on the LIBOR
transition initiatives. Also, the Bank complies with
requirements of treating customers fairly as provided
by FCA, providing them with adequate information and

The directors have acted in good faith to promote the
success of the company for the benefit of its
shareholders as a whole whilst having regard to the

following requirements:
. the likely consequences of any decision in the long
term;

excellent service.

. the interests of the company's employees;
. the need to foster the company's business

Business Relationship
The Bank business model is focused on maintaining a
strong and efficient client relationship. The Bank
equally values its suppliers and contractors and the
important role they play in delivering services to the
Bank. Also, in furtherance ofthe Bank's outsourcing
and operational resilience guidelines, senior
management maintained regular engagement with key
strategic partners and suppliers to perform due
diligence and ensure that a good standard service
delivery is ensured, and report of these engagements
are reported to appropriate committees and the
board.

relationships with suppliers, customers and others;
. the impact of the company's operations on the
community and the environment;

. the desirability of the company maintaining

a

reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
. the need to act fairly as between members;
The directors also took into consideration the views

and interest of a wider stakeholders including
customers, employees, regulators and the broader
society. The following section summarises how the
Directors fulfil these duties.

Also, in order to consolidate its position post Brexit,

the Bank has obtained a third country licence for its
Paris branch and has got a licence for its Dubai

Decision making in the long term

representative office which has now been upgraded to
a branch while Zurich representative branch licence

The Board considers and discusses information from
across the organisation in order to help it understand
the impact of BoA UK operation and the interests and
views of our key stakeholders. lt reviews strategy,

application is in progress.

,(
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Strategic Report (continued)
Community and Environment
The Bank strategy is to always create positive change for
the people and communities it interacts with while

taking into consideration the impact of its action on the
environment. Despite the challenges posed by Covid-19,
the Bank still maintained good relationship with the
environment by acting responsibly, meeting all its
obligations.
Maantaining a reputation for high standards
business conduct

of

BoA UK creates an environment of good culture, values
and high standard of good conduct. This has always
guided the Bank in managing its success and measures
the likely consequences of any decision in the long term
and on stakeholders.
Regulators

Members of the Board and senior management have
been meeting with FCA and PRA on regular basis during
the year 2020 especially in the wake of Covid-l9
Pandemic. The Board has taken steps to make the Bank
comply with the Senior managers Regime. ln addition,
the board provides regular report to the regulators on
the Bank's position and performance.

{

il
,
9

il

Economic overview

Risk Management Framework

Q

BoA UK adopts the risk management model known as
the 'three lines of defence' governance model. This is
the model of risk management that allows the Board to
implement and control the decisions on strategy, risk
and capital.

olriron Environment

According to the World Bank Africa report, driven by the
economic fallout of the COVID-19 pandemic, growth in
Sub-Saharan Africa contracted by 2%in2020, reflecting
a slower-than-expected spread of the virus and lower
COV|D-l9-related mortality in the region, strong
agricultural growth, and a faster-than-expected
recovery in commodity prices. However, the pandemic
has plunged the region into itsfirst recession in 25
years with activity contracting by nearly 5% on a per
capita basis. ln East and Southern Africa, the growth
contraction in 2020 is estimated at-3o/o,0.9 percentage
point less than projected in October 2020, mostly driven
by South Africa and Angola-its two largest
economies. Growth in Western and Central Africa
contracted by t.lo/o in 2020, less than projected in
October 2O20 partly due to a less severe contraction in
Nigeria, the subregion's largest economy, in the second
half of the year. Realgross domestic product in the
subregion is projected to grow by 2.7o/o in 2021 and

This model allows BoA UK to implement effective risk
management and an embed risk culture.
The Board of Directors, through the Board Risk
Committee, has ultimate responsibility for risk

management. Together with the Risk Management
Function, Credit Committee, Large Exposures
Committee, Provisions Committee, ALCO, various risk
policies, Risk Appetite Statement, Enterprise Risk
Framework and various other governance documents
are an integral part of BoA UK's Risk management
framework.
BoA UK is committed to ensure that its risk
management framework is robust, up to date and in line
with best practice.
BoA UK periodically reviews its risk appetite and ensures

3.0%in2O22.

that it is in line with the current environment, the
strategy of BoA UK and budgets. This is provided in both
business as usual and stressed conditions.

@

BoA UK Lending portfolio continues to be well
diversified in terms of counterparty, business unit and

nternotional and Locol Environment

According to the Organization for Economic Co-

country risk. The below graph shows

operation and Development (OECD), the world economy
fell by - 6% due to the Covid-l9 pandemic, compared to
a growth of 2.9o/o in 2019.

:

Total exposition per region
Others

High policy uncertainty, ongoing trade
tensions/protectionism, and a further erosion of
business and consumer confidence are all contributing

to%

to the slowdown.

Africa

Domestic Product shrank by 9.9o/o in 2020
compared to a growth of t. o/o in 2019, driven by the
Covid-19 pandemic, as per the Office for National
Statistics (ONS). Nationwide lockdown measures
continued to weigh on activity.
Weaker global growth and Corona virus uncertainties
weighed on spending.

4So/"

UK Gross

Europe
45%"

Climate Change
The Bank is aware of its sustainability and has been
analyzing how climate change will impact its business

Despite the diversity of the Bank's portfolio, certain
sectors and regions have experienced some difficulties

and how its activities will impact the environment. The
Bank will continue to identify and assess its exposure to
risk from climate change and has put in place robust
governance and risk management processes to mitigate
its exposure to the emergence of climate change risk.

that mainly resulted to the contraction of our
Commodity Finance portfolio.
However, BoA UK's portfolio continued to perform well
in the four main business lines where it operates :

.
.
.
.

10

Treasury & Capital Markets;
Loan Solutions;

Commodities Trade Finance; and
Trade Finance.

Strategic Report (continued)

@
Q

credit Risk

Credit risk is the current or prospective risk to
earnings or capital arising from an obligor's failure to
meet the terms of a contract with BoA UK or its failure
to perform as agreed.
The credit risk includes counterparty risk, settlement
risk and concentration risk.
BoA UK faces credit risk on its exposure to sovereigns
and corporates from its capital markets, corporate
banking and project finance businesses, and from its
exposure to financial institutions and corporates from

rvarket

Risk

Market risk covers the risks that arise from
fluctuations in the values of, or income from tradable
assets, in particular arising from changes in interest
rates, foreign currency exchange rates, and the
market prices of equities and commodities.
BoA UK is exposed to interest rate risk on its holdings
of treasury and corporate bonds portfolio and the risk
from trading foreign exchange.
The financial instruments (bond) portfolio is treated as
asset held at fair value through other comprehensive
lncome (FVOCI) for the purpose of capital

its trade finance and treasury activities.

calculations,

BoA UK has a detailed credit policy and procedures

The fixed income portfolio represents 21% of the total
balance-sheet.

manual providing an operating model and information
on how the credit risk management processes are

embedded

in the

business and overseen

at

the

highest level within BoA UK.

BoA UK continues to act on the financial market,
providing solutions, products and services accordingly

with the defined risk appetite and within

the

governance in place for approving any credit risk.
Credit risk is the main risk in BoA UK as shown here
below:

The Bank did not hold any bonds in the High Quality
Liquid Assets (HaLA) as at year end. lnstead the Bank
held its cash reserves in a Banque de France account,

Minimal currency risk will arise from BoA UK's fixed
income activity as the purchase of most securities
denominated in foreign currency will be funded on a
matched basis.
Currency risk will arise, however, from BoA UK's
trading in vanilla foreign exchange (mainly spot and
forwards). BoA UK manages an open position within
its risk appetite.

Market risk in the banking book may arise from
corporate banking activities; all market risk arising
from this business will be passed to the trading book
for active management and will therefore attract the
additional capital requirements for interest rate and
foreign exchange risk set out above.

Capital Requirements
{Per Risk Type)

@
Credit
65%

The lending portfolio of BoA UK increased significantly
during the last four years, whilst the non performingloans have managed to stay at a reasonable level.
BoA UK do not have significant open positions on
derivative products. The results coming from these
products are mainly due to commercial transactions.
BoA UK do only FX swaps or interest rate swaps. The
Capital requirement related to counterparty exposure
for these products is calculated based on the standard
approach and is not material.

@,,

op"rotionolRisk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems, or from external events such as covid-19
which necessitated remote working. The Covid 19
induced remote working has elevated operational risk
as the system is exposed to cyber attacks while
processing of banking transactions is prone to posting
errors and or delays.
BoA UK currently uses the Basic lndicator
Approach(BlA) to calculate it's Operational Risk
requirements. BoA UK continue to have a sound
reputation and to steer its operational risk carefully
and according to best practices.
BoA UK is dedicated to the management of
operational risks. The framework aims to:
. Minimise losses generated by operational risk;
. lmprove control of operations where necessary;
. Put in place adequate performance measurement
and early warning signals; and
. Enhance operational risk awareness and culture.

5trategtc Keport (conttnued,
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tiquidity

BoA UK monitors its liquidity very closely and within
Risk Tolerance approved by the Board.

Risk

the

Liquidity risk is the risk that a firm, although solvent,
either does not have available sufficient financial
resources to enable it to meet its obligations as they
fall due, or can secure such resources only at
excessive cost. The liquidity ratios of BoA UK has
continued to be above the regulatory requirement
and also above the internal constraint, showing a
comfortable liquidity position.

These internal limits are benchmarked against the
lndividual Liquidity Guidance to ensure they are at
least as stringent.

Principal risks and uncertainities
The table below summarizes the principal risks and

m

uncertainties.

UMEftE

ffi

rlsks

.redit Risk

/arket

Risk

Description :Non-investment grade direct
lending
Component: Sub-Saharan area
lmpact: Losses in notional. lncrease in credit
risk due to rating down grades of key
markets including Nigeria and Angola on the
back of falling oil prices

.
.
.

.egulatory

.
.
.

Description:lnterest rate hikes/Currency

volatility
Component: USD rates
lmpact: Market losses (% of notional) due to
falling bond prices

Heightened regulation/oversight - Driven by
Covid-19 and volatility in Eurobonds and
Mark to market position.
Component: Basel lll
lmpact: Regulatory breach of capital
adequacy ratio due to negative impact of

Country/counterparty analysis, Credit

committee approval.
Some country limits like Angola, Zambia ,
Mali and Turkey were frozen together
with new exposures to upstream energy
production. Some risk was transferred via
insurance

Stop Loss Limit in place and potential
hedge with lnterest rate swap and FX
swaps. Active management of the fixed
income portfolio minimised adverse
impact.

&

+

Regulatory updates
and internal control. Effective internal
systems were able to manage the risk.

MtM losses on Capital
iquidity

.
.
.

iompliance

Description:Long term assets not covered by
wholesale funding

Component:Fundingdiversification
lmpact: Reputational risk

Application and implementation of ILAA
(lndividual Liquidity Adequacy
Assessment)

Description :AML/KYC (Anti-Money
Laundering / Know Your Customer) related

*>

AML Officer, AML systems, AML policy

issues

"*

lmpact: Reputational risk
)perational

Description: Remote Working:
Component: risk of miss-booking/errors in
corporate banking transactions/Cyber
attacks/ System down times.
lmpact: accounting of BoA UK assets /Data
leaks/reputation damage

.
.
.

conomic
ifficulties in
,frican countries

Description: Lower growth in Africa
Component: Bearish commodities market;
low oil market.
lmpact: Lower banking income

Exploring new market opportunities in
Asia and Middle East

ost Brexit

Description: Uncertainties about the impact
of Brexit
lmpact: operational risk

Monitoring impacts of Brexit

f

{ll

System security improvements
Staff awareness training
Restructuring of Back Office

ncertalnties

:ovtD-19

Risk of deterioration of the financial position
of counterparties and breach of credit

covenants
Page 12

Reducing activities in Oil linked business
Vaccine roll out to reduce impact

*>
"+

.l

Strategic Report (continued)
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Signilica

nt

dccou

ntingj udge me nts

The audit committee has considered the key areas of
estimation and judgement applied in the financial
statements as set out in note 3. The considerations
for the most significant areas for 2O2O included:

[@

EdftilF.tnlh

IFRS 9 standards (business
models, probability of
default, loss given default,
etc.)

Revenue recognition

-

Fee

income

The audit committee considered management's key judgements used to establish the
appropriate level of expected credit loss allowances on the Bank's portfolio. The audit
committee considered the range of estimates as disclosed in notes 35 - credit risk.
The audit committee considered the nature of fees for loans to be recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest on loans and the output from the process for
mon itoring effective interest rate adjustments.

Deferred Tax Asset

Estimating the incremental
borrowing rate

lmpairment test of the
Goodwill

The audit committee considered the recoverability of deferred tax assets by reviewing
forecast profitability and considering the sensitivities to those forecasts on the period
to recover the deferred tax asset.

The Bank uses incremental borrowing rate ('lBR') to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Bank would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment
The audit committee considered the contribution of "Corporate & lnvestment
Banking" and 'Treasury & Capital Markets" the two Cash Generating Units (CGUs) for
the valuation of the Goodwill and consequently concluded that no additional
impairment was necessary.

@Port - Erexit
The Bank's business model continues to focus on
doing business with Africa, European Economic Area
(EEA) restrictions on certain services should have a
limited impact in the Bank's business plan.
The Paris branch has obtained a third country licence,
which allows the Bank to conduct business activities in

the

EU.

,
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Strategic Report (continued)
Development and performance by business lines
for the year 2020

[rcrm

,mm

Profit/(Loss) on

I,092

FX

Profit on bonds

4,508

7,403

Money Market

74

834

5,674

8,597

Loan Solutions

6,821

6,456

Commodities & Trade Finance

3,000

2,7!6

Paris branch

3,469

3,097

13,289

L2,269

7t

978

(32s)

(42t\

t8,709

21,424

Treasury

-

Capital Market

Corporate Banking
Other income not allocated
Subordinated debt interest not allocated
Net operating income
Graphs below show the 5 years trend
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Treasury

-

'

Revenue net of funding generated by TCM in 2020
decreased by 34% amidst of the Covid -19 pandemic.
This result was mainly driven by
which fell by 39%.

the

bonds profits

Corporate Banking

.

Zurich and Dubai as well as our Sister Banks
namely Shanghai, Casablanca and Madrid. The aim
of the desk is to form strategic partnerships with
both existing and new clients in order to achieve

further growth in2O2I.

Overall, TCM performance remains positive and
resilient with a strong f5.7M revenue.

.

,.),

.l'

Copitol Market (TCM)

tjElTFnraiEi

Loan solutions - 2020 was a stellar year for Loan
solutions as it generated another record year for
income; 2020 income, despite the
lockdown/Covid-19, broke the f6.5M mark at
€6,821k compared to the previous record of GBp
6,456k in 2019. The team's strategy to generate
more of its income via Fees also started to yield
positive results in 202O.

Commodities and Trade (CTF) CTF's 2020
performance was up by 10% to f3,000K (2019:
f2,775K). CTF will continue to have a dynamic and
diversified strategy in2O2t driven bythe increase
in the portfolio. Trade Finance UK, particularly
grew its book by 53%. This was achieved by both
on-boarding new clients as well as deepening
existing relationships. We continue to rely on the
contributions of our representative offices in

\\
'l/ Page
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Paris branch - Despite the specific context in 2020
and the strong competition, Paris branch
reinforced its contribution to BoA UK's revenue
through the support of its Corporate & Financial
institutions Clients as part of its strategic Trade
Finance and Correspondent banking activities on
African markets.

f
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Strategic Report (continued)

The net operating income decreased by 13% to
f18,709k. The decrease in net operating income
compared to the prior year resulted mainly from the
impact of Covid-19 outbreak to the level of provisions,
despite resilient overall performance in the banking

activities.

I

2q1o,4

86.O%

J-'46 L6.7-

84.O%

lncome analysis

I

21.42

88.OoA

million

go.tolo

,/ tB;
./rc.gf

25.00
20.00
15.00

82.O%

80.0%

10.00

78.0%
75.O%

5.00

74.Oo/o

0.00

72.Oo/o

2019

2018

Net interest income grew by 8o/oto fL7,968k (2019:

roper.

f15,669k),

I

costs

Net oper. lnc.

2020

{-Ratio

The level of interest expenses went down by 52%.
The increase in expected credit loss allowances rose
to reach EL,759k in 2020 mainly due to an increase in
provision of stage I assets which was partially offset
by an appreciation of stage 2 assets for f1,055k.

Net fees and commissions remained negative net
result of f-80k (2019: f-485k) mainly driven by the
slowdown on commodities trade business.

Profit before tax recorded a sharp drop off3,785k
to f97k vs f3,882k in 2019.

Net trading income declined from E4,26tk in 2019 to
f750k in 2020 mainly due to a fall of €4,005k on gains
on disposal, which was partially offset by gains on

foreign exchange.

Profit before tax

Operating expenses remains flat in 2020 (compared to
2019 figures) at 16,853k. Operating expenses were
incurred primarily on Personnel expenses at f8,235k,
other operating expenses at f6,519k and depreciation
of property & equipment at f1,246k.

4.5

Personnel expenses increased significantly by !6.2%
to reach f8,236k (2Ot9: E7,O82k ). The Bank kept its

2.5

on-going commitment to invest in human capital
resources by strengthening teams and retaining

3.9

3.5

I
I
I
I
I

1.5

0.5

depreciation charge in 2020 on Property,Plant and
Equipment and Right-of-use Assets additions
capitalised at the end of 2019.
The cost to income ratio increase from76,70/o in 2019

to

9O.Lo/o

in 2O2O.

Evolution:

4

talented people.
Amortisation and depreciation rose by 33.6% (f2,098k
VS f1,570k in 2019) because ofa full year

-
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Amid unfavourable market conditions and Brexit
uncertainties, the Bank remains profitable
and continues to recognise deferred tax assets in full
Consequently, BANK OF AFRICA United Kingdom plc
recorded a net profit before taxation of f97k for the
yearended 31 December 2O2O l20t9: €3,882k).
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Strategic Report (continued)

adequacy ratio of L6.9% (2OL9: t7.4%l with a core tier
1 capital ratio of L3.7o/o (20L9: L4.L %1. The capital
ratios remained in excess of regulatory requirements
as at the reporting date and demonstrated the robust
capitalposition of the BoA UK.

Balance sheet analysis
The total assets increased by 4.I%to f485,372k (20L9
restated : f466,247k1. Earning assets increased by
€18,251k to f455,197k (20L9: f436,905k). Due from
banks increased by €52,491k to f138,092k (2019:
85,601k); whereas loans to customers decreased by
842,87 9k to EL7 3,t7 3k (2OL9 : f2L6,O52kl.

Risk

f

Deposit liabilities increased bv 4.9o/oto f375,972k
(2019: f358,475k). The increase was mainly from the
Group entities and deposits coming from corporate
customers.

Total shareholder's equity increased by 0.9% to
€81,755k (2019: f80,820k), which is broadly in line
with 2019. BoA UK continued to operate a profitable
business model based on its funding and its good
quality assets portfolio held.

weighted assets increased by 7.6%to f505,809k

(20L9:8469,702k).
Solvency ratio Evolution:
L7.4%
,; ;r"'li

17.3%
t7.20/o

t7.L%
L7.Oo/o

t6.9%
L6.9%
16.8o/o

L6.7%

t6.6%

Capital management
.

20L8

20t9

2020

Definition

The Bank's regulatory capital consists of the sum of

tiquidity and funding

the following elements:

BoA UK's funding strategy continued to rely on
funding from the Group. However, the continuous
profitable performance recorded for the last 5 years
allowed BoA UK to diversify its source of funding
outside the ultimate parent company; with the
ultimate objective of diversification and reducing its
cost of funding. BoA UK continued to maintain a
reserve account with the Banque de France and to
hold high-quality, unencumbered liquid assets in line
with the regulatory buffer asset requirements. ln
addition, highly liquid money market instruments
were held to support liquidity requirements.

.

.

Tier 1 capital (all qualifies as Common Equity Tier 1
(CETI) capital) - it includes ordinary share capital,
retained earnings, reserves and other
comprehensive income (OCl) after adjustment for
deductions for goodwill and other regulatory
adjustments relating to items that are included in
equity but are treated differently for capital
adequacy purposes.

Tier 2 capital - it includes qualifying subordinated
liabilities.

t?fiftlil

wm

Tier 1 Capital

69,581

Subordinated debt (principal)

15,953

Own funds

85,434

Requlred capltal

68,942

Surplus capital

L6,49t

Risk weighted assets

505,809

Tier 1 capital ratio

13.760/o

Solvency ratio

L6.89o/o

As at 31 December 2O20, BoA UK recorded a capital

m,.

BoA UK is committed to meet strong levels

regulatory requirements both

LCR

and

of

NSFR.
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Strategic Report (continued)
Key performance indicator
Return on shareholders' equity has declined lo 186%
(2079:3.6s%1.
Return on Equity (RoE): is profit after tax divided by
equity for the year. The decrease was primarily driven
by a reduction in net trading income and other
operating income, which was partially offset by an
increase in net interest income recorded in the year.
Return on Assets has declined lo 0.37% (2019:0.56%l'
Return on Assets (RoA): is profit after tax divided by
average total assets for the year, the decrease was
due to a reduction in profitability, and an increase in
average assets mainly driven by increases in cash and
balances with central banks and due from banks,
which were partially offset by falls in Loans and
advances to customers and Financial investments

-

FVOCT

/

AFS.

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):This represents the
ability of the Bank to maintain an adequate level of
unencumbered assets that can meet its liquidity needs
for a 30- day period under a severe stress. The Bank
maintained an LCR ratio of average of \79%
throughout the year, which is above the regulatory
requirement of lOO%u
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR): is a measure of the
Bank's total available capital to its risk weighted assets
(RWA). The RWA in 2020 were €36.1m higher than
prior year and total available capital also improved by
f4.4m to €85.4m leading to a reduction in CAR from

t736%to t6,89%.

Signed on behalf of the Board

<-4/4k*

W(
Hak

Ralph Snedddn
Chairman of the audit committee

Barakat

Chief Executive Officer and Director
Date:
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Strategic Report, the Directors' Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.
Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law the Directors have elected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006' Under
Company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Bank and the profit or loss of the Bank for that period'

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Bank's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Bank and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are responsible for such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error'They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Bank and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other

irregularities.

Directors' statement of disclosure to auditors
Each of the Directors confirms that:

.

ln preparing these financial statements, the Directors
are required to:
select suitable accounting policies and then apply

.

them consistentlY;
make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable, relevant and reliable;
state whether applicable international accounting
standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the

.
.

.

financial statements;

.

.

provide additional disclosures when compliance
with specific requirements in international
accounting standards is insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity's financial position and financial
performance; and
prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Bank will continue in business or unless
they intend either to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to

to the best of each Director's knowledge and
belief, there is no information relevant to the
preparation of their report of which the Bank's
auditor is unaware; and
each Director has taken all the steps a Director
might reasonably be expected to have taken to be
aware of relevant audit information and to
establish that the Bank's auditor is aware of that

@

information.
This confirmation is given in accordance with
international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

F

do so,

fl

Signed on

beholf of the Board

g
Hak Morssi Barakat

5 lr\r-o

Chief Executive Officer and Director
Ralph Snedden

Date:

5t It

Chairman of the audit committee
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Directors'report
Directors' interests

The Directors of BANK OF AFRICA United Kingdom plc
present their Directors' report for the year ended 31
Decernber 2020. As permitted by Paragraph 14 of Schedule
7 to the Large and Medium sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 certain matters
which are required to be disclosed in the Directors' Report
have been included in the Strategic Report on pages 7-17.
These matters relate to Future Developments; and

None of the Directors has, or had during the year under
review, any beneficial interest in the shares of the
Company.

Directors' insurance and indemnities
The Directors have the benefit of the indemnity provisions
contained in the Company's Articles of Association
('Articles'), and the Company has maintained throughout
the year Directors' liability insurance for the benefit of the
Company and the Directors.
The Company has entered into qualifying third party
indemnity arrangements for the benefit of all its Directors
in a form and scope which comply with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2005 and which were in force
throughout the year and remain in force.

Financial Risl< Management

Principal activities
The Bank is authorised and regulated by the Prudential
Regulation Authority (PRA) and Financial Conduct Authority
(FcA).

The Bank's principal activities are Corporate and
lnvestment Banking, focusing on trade, structured and
project finance and corporate lending for target customers
based in Africa or with an interest in the region and
Treasury and Capital Markets, focusing on currency and
interest rate markets of the region.

financial services. There have not been any significant
changes in the Bank's main activities in the year under
review.
The Directors are not aware, at the date of this report, of
any likely changes in the Bank's activities in the

successfu ly.

forthcoming period.

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Bank
has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and for at least L2
months from the date of approval of the financial

ln making this assessment, the Directors have considered a
wide range of information relating to present and future
conditions, including the current state of the balance sheet,
future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital
resources, support from its parent company and the
longer-term strategy of the business'

Capital structure

The Bank has taken into considering the current and
potential itnpacts of Covid-19, including on its business
plans.

The Bank's capital structure remains unchanged. However,
the accumulated losses have decreased due to profits
being fully reinvested in the business'

The Bank's capital and liquidity plans have been stress
tested under a range of stressed scenarios and have been
reviewed by the Directors.

at 31 December 2020, the maturity of €17,700k
subordinated debt remained until 2026.
As

Pillar 3 disclosures

The Directors assessed a range of scenarios including
stressed scenarios and the results indicated that the Bank
would have sufficient capital and liquidity to fund its
balance sheet for each reasonably possible scenario'

Further information regarding the Bank's approach to risk
management and its capital adequacy is contained in the
unaudited Pillar 3 disclosures made under the current
regulatory capital requirements.
These disclosures will be published on the Banl<'s website
shortly after the approval of these financial statements at

The Directors also concluded that both capital and liquidity
forecasts remained within present regulatory
requirements, over the period assessed.

nance

Directors
The Directors, who all served throughout the year, unless
otherwise shown are as listed on page 4 of the report.
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The directors consider that there is no material uncertainty
on going concern.

No dividend was paid during the year (2019: €Nil). The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the financial year 2O2O (2019: f Nil)

Houssam El Borqkat Morsi

(i.

statements.

Results and dividend
The Bank's profit for the year before taxation amoLtnted to
f97k (2019: f3,882k).

v

s

(i

Going concern basis of accounting

in human capital and its lT systems with the objective of
improving its business and financial performances. The
Directors regard such investment as necessary for shifting
expectations on the future of the busitress.

' Dote

'i

I

United Kingdom plc invests significantly

Signed on behalf of the Boord

l'i

widespread disruption to normal patterns of business
activity across the world, including the UK' This pandemic
has created unprecedented challenges for individuals,
economies, financial markets, financial institutions and
governments.
ln response to this evolving situation, the Bank keeps
reviewing its business activities so as to adapt to the
ongoing situation and has put in place contingent plans to
enable staff to work remotely which has been working

BANK OF AFRICA United Kingdom plc is an authorised
credit institution and provides a range of banking and

u

(i

The Directors are closely monitoring the impact of the
global pandemic from the outbreak of Covid-19 which
became significant in March 2020 and is causing

Business review

http://www.b n.rce-intl.co.

il).

covlD-19

The Bank operates in the United Kingdom, in branches in
France and Dubai and had a rep office in wlrich is in the
process of being converted to a branch.

BANK OF AFRICA

I
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The Directors therefore believe that it retnains appropriate
to continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing

li

these Bank's financial statements'

i

Signed on belt

\r
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lndependent auditor's report to the members of
Bank of Africa UK plc

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. The non-audit services
prohibited by that standard were not provided to
the Company.

Opinion on the financial statements
ln our opinion the financial statements:

.
.

.

Conclusions relating to going concern

give a true and fair view of the Company's affairs
as at 31 December 2020 and of the Company's
profit for the year then ended;

ln auditing the financial statements, we have
concluded that the Directors' use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the
Directors' assessment of the Company's ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting included:

have been properly prepared in accordance with
international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006:
and

the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

.

We have audited the financial statements of Bank of
Africa UK plc (the 'Company') for the year ended 3L
December 2020 which comprise Statement of Profit
or Loss, the Statement of Other Comprehensive
lncome, the Statement of Financial Position, the
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of
Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and
international accounting standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

.

Obtaining the Directors' assessment of the going
concern, which includes the going concern
assumptions, applied in the financial statements.
For key assumptions included in the forecasts and
stress scenarios, we have obtained an
understanding of the Directors' rational for the
assumptions made and agreed these where
possible to relevant supporting documentation.
ln understanding the capital and liquidity of the
Company, we have reviewed the ICAAP and capital
adequacy ratio with the help of our regulatory
experts. We have used this understanding to

the Directors' capital and liquidity position.
Enquiring with the Directors about the implications

assess

.

Basis for opinion

.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
lnternational Standards on Auditing (UK) (lSAs

of COVID-19 on the business and the impact of this
on the forecasts. Checking that this has been
appropriately reflected in the forecasts.
Assessing the forecast used to support the Going

Concern assessment for arithmetical accuracy.
Challenge of the various stress scenarios.

(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the

.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our
audit opinion is consistent with the additional report
to the audit committee.

lndependence
Following the recommendation of the audit
committee, we were appointed by the Board of
Directors on 17 December 2019 to audit the
financial statements for the year ending 31
December 2020. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement including retenders
and reappointments is 1 year, covering the year
ended 31 December 2O2O. We remain
independent of the Company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to
public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our

Considered the adequacy of the disclosures in the
financial statements based on our knowledge
gained as a result of the above procedures.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not
identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least
twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

,( \\
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Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the
Directors with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.

lndependent auditor's report to the members of
Bank of Africa UK plc {continuedf

Risk

g

Due from banks,
Loans and advances to customer & Balances due from banks

V
V
V

of Fraud in revenue recognition
Loan loss Provisioning

G'l}:tllffiailrlEE

Risk

E@EV

of error in FX revaluation

g

Company financial statements as a whole
based on 0.5% of net

An overview of the scope of our audit

period and include the most significant assessed risks
of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraudlthat we identified, including those which had
the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the
allocation of resources in the audit, and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Our audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding
of the Company and its environment, including the
Company's system of internal control, and assessing
the risks of material misstatement in the financial

statements. We also addressed the risk of
management override of internal controls, including
assessing whether there was evidence of bias by the
Directors that may have represented a risk of material
misstatement.
There have been a number of challenges during the
financial statement preparation and audit processes
which have resulted in the company being unable to
submit signed audited accounts to Companies House
and the PRA within the required timeframe. A number
of matters arose during the audit which required
further consideration by the management team and
ultimately led to a significant number of adjustments
to the financial statements being necessary including
prior period adjustments. The Company hired a
previous incumbent CFO as a contractor for most of
2O2t and early 2O22 to assist with the preparation of
the 2020 accounts.
As a consequence of the matters identified and the
additional level of risk assessed in certain areas, we
increased the size of the audit team, carried out

additional consultations on certain matters and
performed additional audit procedures where this was
considered necessary to obtain sufficient audit
evidence to support our opinion. This resulted in an
adjustment to our original planned audit approach
and timetable becoming necessary.
Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in

our audit of the financial statements of the current
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lndependent auditor's report to the members of
Bank of Africa UK plc (continued)
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Effective interest rate
accounting

The Bank's interest income is
recognised on an effective interest
rate ("ElR") method in accordance

Management's

accounting standards.

Revenue recognitlon

-

with the requirements of applicable

We obtained assurance over the calculations
performed by the client's core banking system,
testing the operating effectiveness of automated
interest income calculations with assistance from
our lT specialist team.

associated

accounting policies are
detailed in note 2.3 on
page 35 with

detail about
judgements in
applying accounting
policies
and critical accounting
estimates on page 45.

This method involves adjusting fee
and interest income to ensure it
complies with the EIR method. The
approach used to achieve this is
reliant on the completeness and
accuracy of input data.
Revenue recognition is therefore
considered to be an area of
significant risk in respect of the EIR
calculations and contractual interest

For a sample of contractual interest income, we
manually re-calculated the contractual interest
income. We verified key inputs into these
calculations, such as interest rate and principal
balances, to supporting documentation such as
client agreements.

We manually re-calculated the contractual bond
interest income for a sample of counterparties.
We verified key inputs into these calculations,
such as interest rate and principal balances, to

supporting agreements.

income adjustments.
We agreed a sample of fees to agreements and
tested that these are recognised in accordance
with the EIR method and the relevant financial
reporting framework, including checking a sample
of client agreements to ensure that all fees that
meet the criteria for spreading under EIR are
included within the model.
We reviewed the stated revenue recognition
policies to check compliance with IFRS 9 and IFRS
15, and corroborate the application throughout
our testing approach, which included an
assessment of whether management includes the
appropriate fee cash flows within the calculation
of the effective interest rate.

Key Observations:
Based on our audit work performed, we consider

that the effective interest rate accounting is
appropriate.

c
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lndependent auditor's report to the members of
Bank of Africa UK plc (continued)

@ME

accounting policies are
detailed in note 2.Ll on

The principal activity of the Bank is
the provision of credit services (loans
and advances) to corporates, banks
and individual customers.
Commensurate with the activities of
the Bank, the total loan loss provision
is a material balance subject to
management judgement and

page 38 with

estimation.

detail about
judgements in applying
accounting policies and
critical accounting
estimates on page 45.

the Bank is required to
assess the recoverability of all
facilities, not just those specifically
identified as impaired. Therefore, the

Loan loss Provisioningassumptions used in

the estimate
Management's
associated

Under

We evaluated whether the definition of default
used by the Bank is in accordance with the

accounting standard.
All key inputs used in the modelling were agreed
to relevant internal or external support. This
included PDs and LGDs rates.
We evaluated and challenged the Bank's

lFRSs,

Bank needs to assess the Expected

Credit Loss (ECL) provision for the
loan book as a

whole, taking into account
macroeconomic factors (including
PD's, LGD's and EAD's) along with the
staging, to ensure compliance with
tFRS 9.

A number of the Bank's current
facilities are exposed to business
activities, which may be negatively
affected by the coronavirus

pandemic. There is a risk that a loss
event has occurred given the impact
of the pandemic on economic

activities.

determination of what constitutes a Significant
lncrease in Credit Risk (SICR), by reference to the
requirements of IFRS 9 and the approach taken by
the Bank.
We selected a sample of Stage 1 and Stage 2
loans to test the application of SICR and the
adequacy of the ECL by reference to the
performance of the loan, collateral, and potential
recovery strategy.
We assessed the appropriateness of using third
parties such as S&P for calculating internal risk
parameters. This was assessed by our credit risk
experts.

With the support of our economics experts, we
assessed the appropriateness of the
macroeconomic variables, such as GDP and
Corporate insolvency rates for the loan portfolios.
We assessed the reasonability of multiple
economic scenarios used, including the number,
weighting and probability changes, by obtaining
the Bank's support for these judgements and

performing sensitivity analysis.
For Stage 3 loans, we tested the default trigger
and management strategy for recoverability. We
challenged management on stage 3 loans around
the adequacy of ECL, considering multiple
economic scenarios and probabilities of
realisation of these scenarios in relation to the
stage 3 loans.

We tested the compliance of the disclosures in
the financial statements with IFRS.
Key Observations:
Based on our audit work performed, we consider
the estimates made by the Bank in the calculation
of the ECL provision to be reasonable, and in line
with the
of IFRS 9.
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lndependent auditor's report to the members of
Bank of Africa UK plc (continued)

@[rll}rltll
Due from bank, Loans

and advances to
customer & Due to
customers.
Note 15 for Due from
banks, Note 15 for
Loans and advances

to

customer and Note 23
Due to customers.
PPA page 86 and 87.

The Bank deals with customers and
other banks in the normal course of
business. These transactions need to
be reconciled for accurate
representation of balances in

financial statements.

We obtained a comprehensive understanding of
Bank's reconciliation process.
Our testing approach on cash and due from bank
balances included the testing of all bank
reconciliations as at 31 December 2020. We

obtained external confirmations to confirm the
existence and accuracy ofthe external balances.
We agreed the year end balance to the general
ledger and checked reconciling items to
supporting documentation where available.

There can be procedural delays in

performing these reconciliations
which can then have an impact on
cash balances and loans or other
amounts. A delay can result in the
need for material correcting
adjustments to these balances.
The Bank has three main lending
products: loan solutions, trade
finance and commodity trade
finance. These products were
recognised as either loans &
advances to customers or balances
due from banks depending on the

nature of the counterparty.

We identified two accounts with aged
unreconciled items. We requested management
to investigate all these items and adjust or
reconcile as appropriate.
We sent external loan confirmations to obtain
evidence over the existence and accuracy of a
sample of lending balances.

We identified a number of discrepancies between
the loan confirmations per the external party and
the balance recorded by the Bank. We sent out
additional confirmations to confirm certain
balances that were not included in our original
sample.
The Bank investigated allaged unreconciled items
on the bank reconciliations and discrepancies on
the lending loan confirmations.
This resulted in a Prior period adjustment as
reflected in the accounts on page 86 and 87,
We tested all material resulting adjustments to
appropriate external and internal supporting
evidence.
Key Observations:
Based on our audit work performed, we consider
the amounts reflected in Due from bank, Loans
and advances to customer & Due to customers
have been appropriately stated after the
adjustments noted above.
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revaluation

During the closing process of the
2020 books, significant revaluation

Risk of

error in FX

Management's

differences were identified by
management mainly due to:
o migration of the loan booksfrom

associated

Paris to London;

accounting policies are
detailed in note 2.2 on

suspense accounts; and

page 35.

.
.

We obtained a detailed breakdown of all balances
and transactions for the year ended 31 December
2020 and reconciled this with the amount relating
to FX in the trial balance to check the
completeness of listing.

matters derived from clearing

We disaggregated the total population into
balance sheet items and profit and loss items in
order to test homogeneous items together as
balance sheet items are translated at closing rate
while income statement items are translated at
the spot rate in line with IAS 21. We performed
the re-computation on a sample basis and agreed
results with the FX revaluation recognised by

matters related to the revaluation

process.
There is risk of material
misstatement due to error in

calculation and recognition of
revaluation.

FX

management.
We compared rates used by the bank with an
independent source to check the reasonableness
of rates used.
The Bank used an independent external partyto
re-perform the FX revaluation. We considered the
methodology used by external party in

conjunction with our internal experts.
We audited the adjustments made by
management by obtaining the underlying
supporting documents and recalculating the FX
revaluation for the sample selected.
Key Observations:
Based on our audit work performed, we consider
that the net FX valuation gain/loss recognised is
appropriate.

Our application of materaality
We apply the concept of materiality both in planning
and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect

of misstatements. We consider materiality to be the
magnitude by which misstatements, including
omissions, could influence the economic decisions of
reasonable users that are taken on the basis ofthe
financial statements.

performance materiality, to determine the extent of
testing needed. lmportantly, misstatements below
these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as
immaterial as we also take account of the nature of
identified misstatements, and the particular
circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating
their effect on the financial statements as a whole.
Based on our professional judgement, we determined

ln order to reduce to an appropriately low level the
probability that any misstatements exceed
materiality, we use a lower materiality level,

materiality for the financial statements as a whole and
performance materiality as follows:
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f413,000

5% of net assets. This low percentage has been selected

considering the entity and the execution of the audit.

ffi

The majority of the stakeholders'interests in the bank are
asset focused. This is also the key metric indicated by
management and the group auditors of most importance

when

f268,000
Performance materiality was set at65% of materiality as this
our first audit of the entity. We considered if this should be
reduced further as the audit progressed but concluded notto
this as it was
be at a low level

Reporting threshold

We have nothing to report in this regard.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would
report to them all individual audit differences in
excess of f8,000. We also agreed to report
differences below this threshold that, in our view,
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report and
Financial Statements, other than the financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. lf we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,
we are required to determine whether this gives rise
to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. lf, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that
fact.
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Other Companies Act 2006 reporting
Based on the responsibilities described below and our
work performed during the course of the audit, we

are required by the Companies Act 2006 and tSAs (UK)

to report on certain opinions and matters

as

described below.

ln our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
. the information given in the strategic report and the Directors' report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with

ffi

the financial statements; and
. the strategic report and the Directors'report have been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.
ln the light of the knowledge and understanding of company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements
in the strategic report or the Directors' report.

ffi

We have noth ing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which
the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
. adequate accounting records have not been kept bythe Company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
. the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or
o certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our

Responsibilities of Directors

are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

As explained more fully in the Directors'

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with tSAs (UK)will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

responsibilities statement, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

these financial statements.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis ofaccounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud.

lrregularities, including fraud, are instances of noncompliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined
above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below.

so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
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engagement team members, including internal
specialists, and remained alert to any indications of
fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations
throughout the audit. As part of this discussion, we
noted the potential for fraud to arise within
accounting estimates such as the loan loss provision

We gained an understanding of the legal and
regulatory framework applicable to the company and
the industry in which it operates, and considered the
risk of acts by the company which were contrary to
applicable laws and regulations, including fraud. These
included, but were not limited to, compliance with
Companies Act 2006 and international accounting
standards in conformity with the Companies Act 2006.
We also considered the company's compliance with
licence conditlons and supervisory requirements of
the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) and the
Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), and relevant tax

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to
risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements, recognising that the risk of not detecting
a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than
the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery, misrepresentations or through
collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit
procedures performed and the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations is from the
events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely we are to become aware of
it.

legislation.
We focused on laws and regulations that could give
rise to a material misstatement in the Company
financial statements. Our tests included, but were not

limited to

.

.

.
.

.

.

A further description of our responsibilities is available

:

on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

We identified two nostro reconciliations with aged
items. We requested management to investigate
and adjust these items. This has resulted in
adjustments to the trial balance including a Prior
Period Adjustment. We have vouched key
information for material adjustments to
appropriate support;

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Company's members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 15 of
the Companies Act 2005. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Company's members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions

We requested management prepare a detailed
paper to the Audit Committee to ensure that the
Audit Committee had visibility over the number of
adjustments that were identified as necessary and
to facilitate effective governance over the
completeness and accuracy of the financial
statements and the financial statement
preparation process;

we have formed.

Made enquiries in respect of fraud of
management, internal audit and the audit
committee;
Read minutes of meetings of those charged with
governance, reviewing internal audit reports and
correspondence with the Financial Conduct
Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority.
ln addition we had a number of discussions with
the Prudential Regulation Authority in respect of
the delays in signing the accounts;

ln addressing the risk of fraud through
management override of controls, tested the
appropriateness of a sample journal entries and
other adjustments to appropriate supporting
documentation;
Assessed whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential

Ariel Grosberg (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, UK
3L )anuary 2022
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in

bias

England and Wales (with registered number

oc3os127),

We also communicated relevant identified laws and
regulations and potential fraud risks to all
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Statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2O2O

ErcITd

NETE

lnterest and similar income

6

lnterest expense and similar charges

5

Net interest income
Fee and commission income

7

Fee and commission expense

7

Net fee and commission expense
Net trading income

8

Other operating income

Tnrn

22,036
(4,068)

ffi
25,094
(8,425)

t7,968

16,669

2,149

L,622

(2,229)

l2,LO7l

(80)

(48s)

750

4,26t

69

979

9

18,707
(8,236)

18

(L,2441

(8oe)

Amortisation of intangible assets

19

(8s2)

(761)

Other operating expenses

10

Net operating income
Personnel expenses

Depreciation of Property,Plant and Equipment and Right-of-use

Assets

Total operatint expenses before impairment losses
Net impairment losses

11

Profit before taxation

t2

Taxation

Profit for the year

(6,519)
(16,851)

Changes to prior year figures are explained in Note
38.

ffi

30

(7,082)

(8,025)
1t6,6771

(1,759)

(86s)

97

3,882

1,000
t,097

The profits for the current year and preceding year
are derived from continuing operations.
2019 income statement has been restated.

21,424

(1,250)

2,622

Statement of other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 202O

filififil

NEft

1,097

Profit for the year after tax
Items that

m,
2,622

will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(400)

Realised FV (gains) on disposal of debts classified as FVOCI

(1,s19)

Items that may qualify for reclassification
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations
Unrealised gains

(2271

on debt instruments at FVOCI

Tax on Unrealised gains

Other comprehensive income for the year

13

Total comprehenslve lncome for the year

118

L,289

4,323

s6

(2L21

7t8

2,7t0

1,815

5,332

Changes to prior year figures are explained in Note

38.

t

@.,

Statement of financial positlon as at 31 December 2020

tflirm

NbR!

?ntnl

ffi

Assets
Cash and balances

L4

42,930

3,108

15

138,092

85,493

433

254

t6

173,773

215,39L

L7

100,569

L31,889

18

3,687

5,363

t9 -20

10,904

LL,182

with central banks

Due from banks

Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to customers

Financial investments

-

FVOCI

Property ,Plant and Equipment and Right -of-use Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

L2

6,626

5,851

Other assets

2t

8,958

7,717

485,372

466,248

276,280

263,1.50

Total assets

Liabilities and equity
22

Due to banks

Derivative financial instruments

135

34

Due to customers

23

99,555

95,29L

Other liabilities

24

ro,64t

tt,722

Subordinated debt

25

t6,tL7

L5,23t

Total llabllities

402,729

385,428

102,173

L02,r73

Equlty attrlbutable to equlty holders
Share capital

26

Other reserves

26

Accumulated losses

26

Total equity
Total llabllltles and equlty

1,890

(2L,4201

ro

t,r72
(22,s251

82,643

80,820

485,372

466,248

Changes to prior year figures are explained in Note
38,

rt
9\\n
Houssam

Hak

"d

Barakat

Chief Executive Officer and Director

Ralph Snedden

e.l, I "o*

Chairman of the audit committee

@.,

fi

Statement of Changes in Equity
f:rcfm

-qirE

ffi ffi ffif,

Balance as at 1 January 2019 as previously

to2,t73

stated
lmpact of correction of errors

(1,538)

t

Profit for the year as previously stated
lmpact of correction of errors

tt

Other comprehensive income

13

(25,181)
34

702,173 (1,538)

Restated Bolance os ot 1 Jonuary 2079

EIFM

(25,747)

2,770

34
75,488

2,852

2,852

(230)

(230)

2,7tO

Total comprehensive income

75,454

2,7tO

2,522

5,332

Balance as at 31 December 2019

to2,t73

1,t72

122,5251

80,820

Balance as at 1 January 2020

to2,t73

t,t72

122,5251

80,820

Profit for the year
lmpact of correction of errors

t,t

Other comprehensive income

13

718

to2,l73

Other reserves category in the table above relates to
changes in the fair value of financial instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income and the effects of foreign currency retranslation
on a foreign operation.
Changes to prior year figures are explained in Note 38.

Note

i: impact of corrections due to adjustments (net of tax)
prior 2019;

ii: impact of corrections due to 2019 adjustments (net of
tax);

iii: change due to adjustment on deferred tax asset
opening balance 2020.

m..

1,o97

8

8

7t8

Total com prehensive i ncome
Balance as at 31 December 2020

r,097

1,990

778
7,705

7,823

l2t,420l

82,643

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2020

flirm

FErl!

,IfrN

ilr

.r

lii:l.i,rii'r;

Cash flows from continuing operating activities

Profit before tax

97

3,882

Adjustments for:

(17,968)
22,440

Net interest income

lnterest received

24,090

(2,905)

lnterest paid
Change in operating assets

28

Change in operating liabilities

28

Other items included in profit before tax

28

Net cash flows used by continuing operating activities

(9,691)

(29,4071

42,218

18,426
5,209

(1,549)

(s7l

Corporation tax

Cash flows

(16,66s)

(119,601)

(436)

(4,205)

177,7561

(17,350)

(151,190)

48,165

196,750

from investing activities

Purchase of financial investments
Proceeds from sales of financial investments
Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipment and Right -of-use Assets

(60)

(81)

Purchase of intangible assets

(63)

(333)

30,693

Net cash flows generated by investing activities

35,146

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of lease principal

(1,107)

(877l,

Net cash flows used by financing activities

(1,107)

(8771

Net increase

/

(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December

Changes
38.

28

to prior year figures are explained in Note

,(,
'r\
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25,381

(43,4871

47,408

g0,gg5

72,789

47,409

1. Corporate lnformation

broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding
recovery or settlement within 12 months after the
statement of financial position date (current) and
more than 1.2 months after the statement of financial
position date (non-current) is presented in note 35.

ln these financial statements, BANK OF AFRICA United
Kingdom plc is referred to as the "Bank"or as "BoA
UK". The statements comprise the financial
statements of BANK OF AFRICA United Kingdom plc as
an individual entity. The Bank also maintains a foreign
branches that is located in Paris and Dubai.

2.2 Foreign cL!rrency trunslation

The Bank provides Corporate and lnvestment Banking
and Treasury services in Europe as well as North, East,
West and Central Africa. The principal activities of the
Bank are described in the strategic and Directors'

The financial statements are presented in British
Pound, which is the Bank's functional and
presentation currency. The functional currency of the
foreign branch in Paris is Euro.

reports.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. The foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. Unrealised gains and losses on unsettled
transactions are also taken to the statement of profit
and loss.

BANK OF AFRICA United Kingdom plc is incorporated

and domiciled in England and Wales and is authorised
and regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority
(PRA) and the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). lts
registered office is at 26 Upper Brook Street, London,
W1K 7qE, United Kingdom.
The ultimate parent undertaking and ultimate
controlling party is Banque Marocaine du Commerce
Exterieur S.A. (BMCE Bank of Africa Group), a

Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
The results of the foreign branch are translated into
the Bank's presentational currency on a monthly basis
at the month end market exchange rate. All balances
at the end of the period are converted at the period
end rate. Any foreign exchange differences arising are
accounted through other comprehensive income and
accumulated in 'other reserves' in equity.

Company incorporated in Morocco. BMCE
lnternational (Holdings) plc, a Company incorporated
in the United Kingdom and registered in England and
Wales, is the immediate holding Company for the
Bank.

Copies of the consolidated financial statements
prepared in respect of Banque Marocaine du
Commer'ce Exterieur S.A. may be obtained by request
on the following address: 140 Avenue Hassan ll 2100
Casablanca or on the website:

http://www. bmceba

n k.

2.3 Net intere.st inconte

ma/.

lnterest income and expense for all financial
instruments except for those classified as held for

2. Significant accounting policies
2.7. Bosis of preporcttion

trading or those measured or designated as at FWPL
are recognised in 'Net interest income'as'lnterest
income' and 'lnterest expense' in the statement of
profit or loss account using the effective interest
method. lnterest on financial instruments measured
as at FVTPL is included within the fair value movement
during the period, see 'Net trading income'.

The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis
and in accordance with prepared in accordance with
international accounting standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The Bank's Directors have made an assessment of the
Bank's ability to continue as a going concern as
described in the Director's Report on page L9 and are
satisfied that it has the adequate resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future, and
for a period of at least 12 months from the approval
date of the financial statements. Furthermore, there
are no material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon the Bank's ability to continue as a going
concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue
to be prepared on a going concern basis.

The effective interest rate (ElR) is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial
instrument through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. The future cash flows are estimated
taking into account all the contractual terms of the

instrument.
The calculation of the EIR includes allfees paid or
received between parties to the contract that are
incremental and directly attributable to the specific
lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for derivative financial
instruments, financial assets and financial liabilities
held at fair value through profit or loss investments in
debt instruments measured at FVOCI that have been
measured at fair value.

premiums or discounts. For financial assets at FWPL
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss at
initial recognition.

The Bank presents its statement of financial position

.t
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss. lf
the transaction price differs from fair value at initial
recognition, the Bank will account for such difference

The interest income/ interest expense is calculated by
applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of noncredit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortised
cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any

as

expected credit loss allowance), or to the amortised
cost of financial liabilities. For credit-impaired financial
assets the interest income is calculated by applying
the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired
financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the
allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)),

- if fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or based
on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, then the difference is recognised
in profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e. day 1

profit or loss);

2-.4 Net lee and commission incotnt:

- in all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to
bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e. day 1
profit or loss will be deferred by including it in the
initial carrying amount of the asset or liability).

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a
diverse range of services it provides to its customers in
connection with its principal activities, and providing
corporate advisory services. Fees and commission
such as upfront fees and trade finance fees are
recognised at point in time. However, some fees
earned for the provision of services over a period of
time such as commitment fees are accrued over that
period. These fees include commission income and
advisory fees. Loan commitment fees for loans that
are likely to be drawn down and other credit related
fees are deferred (together with any incremental
costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the
effective interest rate on the loan.

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will
be released to profit or loss on a rational basis, only to
the extent that it arises from a change in a factor
(including time) that market participants would take
into account when pricing the asset or liability.
2.7 Financial assets
All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the financial asset within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are initially measured at
fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those
financial assets classified as at FWPL.

Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the
negotiation of a transaction for a third party, such as
the arrangement of the acquisition of shares or other
securities or the purchase or sale of businesses, are
recognised on completion of the underlying
transaction. Fees or components of fees that are
linked to a certain performance are recognised after
fulfilling the corresponding criteria.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets classified as at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss. For all
financial assets the amount presented on the
statement of financial position represent all amounts
receivable including interest accruals.

2.5 Net troding inconte
Net trading income includes all gains and losses from
changes in the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities held for trading as well as foreign
exchange gains and losses. The Bank has elected to
present the full fair value movement of trading assets
and liabilities in trading income, including any related
interest income, expense and dividends.

2.6

Fi

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value on the basis
of the entity's business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets.

na ncia I instru m e nts

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the Bank's balance sheet when the Bank becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that

are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.

,-.-

,(

follows:

\\,
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

the Bank manages its financial assets in order to

Specifically:

generate cash flows. The Bank's business models
determine whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial
assets or both.

- debt instruments that are held within a business

model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows

that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (SPPI), are subsequently
measured at amortised cost;
- debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the debt

instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that
are SPPI, are subsequently measured at FVTOCI; all
other debt instruments (e.g., debt instruments
managed on a fair value basis or held for sale) and
equity investments are subsequently measured at

When a debt instrument measured at FWOCI is
derecognised, the cumulative gain/loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss. ln contrast, for an equity investment
designated as measured at FWOCI, the cumulative
gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss but
transferred within equity.
Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to
impairment.

FVTPL.

2.9 Financictl ossets ot FVTPL
2.8 Debt instrunents at amortised cost or at FVTOCI

Financial assets at FWPL are:

The Bank assesses the classification and
measurement of a financial asset based on the
contractual cash flow characteristics ofthe asset and
the Bank's business model for managing the asset. For
an asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or at FVTOCI, its contractual terms should give
rise to cash flows that are SPPI.

- assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI;

For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value
of the financial asset at initial recognition. That
principal amount may change over the life of the
financial asset (e.g, if there are repayments of
principal). lnterest consists of consideration for the
time value of money, for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The SPPI
assessment is made in the currency in which the
financial asset is denominated.

or/and
- assets that are held in a business model other than
held to collect contractual cash flows or held to collect

and sell; or
- assets designated at FWPL using the fair value

option.
For the current period, the Bank has not booked any

Financial assets at FWPL other than derivatives.

2.

Rec

lassifi cati on s

lf the business model under which the Bank holds
financial assets changes, the financial assets affected
are reclassified. The classification and measurement
requirements related to the new category apply
prospectively from the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in business model that
results in reclassifying the Bank's financial assets.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual terms
that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic
lending arrangement, such as exposure to change in
equity prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to
contractual cash flows that are SPPI. An originated or
an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending
arrangement irrespective of whether it is a loan in its
legal form.
The Bank determines the business models at a level
that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. The Bank's business model depends on
management's intentions for an individual instrument.
The Bank has more than one business model for
managing its financial instruments which reflect how

/z
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.L2 Credit-itnpoired financiol ossets
2,11 lmpoirment

A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have

The Bank recognises loss allowances for Expected
Credit Losses ("ECL") on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at FWPL:

occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred
to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment

- loans and advances to banks;

includes observable data about the following events:

- loans and advances to customers;

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

- debt investment securities;

- lease receivables;

- a breach of contract such as a default or past due

- loan commitments issued; and

evenU

- financial guarantee contracts issued.

the lender of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
concession that the lender would not otherwise
-

No impairment loss is recognised on equity
investments.
are required to be measured through a loss
allowance at an amount equal to:
ECLs

a

consider;

- 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those
default events on the financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date,
(referred to as Stage 1); or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security

because of financial difficulties; or
-

the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount

that reflects the incurred credit losses.

full lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all
possible default events over the life of the financial
instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

-

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete

event-instead, the combined effect of several events
may have caused financial assets to become credit-

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a
financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. For all other financial instruments, ECLs
are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month

impaired. The Bank assesses whether debt
instruments that are financial assets measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI are credit-impaired at each
reporting date. To assess if sovereign and corporate
debt instruments are credit impaired, the Bank
considers factors such as bond yields, credit ratings
and the ability of the borrower to raise funding .

ECL.
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the
present value of credit losses. These are measured as
the present value of the difference between the cash

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a
concession is granted to the borrower due to a
deterioration in the borrower's financial condition,
unless there is evidence that as a result of granting the
concession the risk of not receiving the contractual
cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no

flows due to the Bank under the contract and the cash
flows that the Bank expects to receive arising from the
weighting of multiple future economic scenarios,
discounted at the asset's ElR.
- for undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is the
difference between the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are
due to the Bank if the holder of the commitment
draws down the loan and the cash flows that the Bank
expects to receive if the loan is drawn down; and
- for financial guarantee contracts, the ECL is the
difference between the expected payments to
reimburse the holder of the guaranteed debt
instrument less any amounts that the Bank expects to
receive from the holder, the debtor or any other
party.

other indicators of impairment. For financial assets
where concessions are contemplated but not granted
the asset is deemed credit impaired when there is
observable evidence of credit-impairment including
meeting the definition of default.

The Bank measures ECL on exposures at default (EAD)
on individual transaction. The measurement of the
loss allowance is based on the present value of the
asset's expected cash flows using the asset's original
ElR, regardless of whether it is measured on an

individual basis.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.13 Definition of deluult
Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of
default. The definition of default is used in measuring

the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether
the loss allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL,
as default is a component of the probability of default
(PD) which affects both the measurement of ECLs and
the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.
The Bank considers the following as constituting an
event of default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Bank in full and/or customers
who are late in payment by more than 90 days .
This definition of default is used by the Bank for
accounting purposes as well as for internal credit risk
management purposes. The definition of default is

appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics
of different types of assets.

As noted in the definition of credit impaired financial
assets above, default is evidence that an asset is credit

For corporate lending, forward-looking information
includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Bank's counterparties operate, obtained from
economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other
similar organisations, as well as consideration of various
internal and external sources of actual and forecast

The Bank allocates its counterparties to a relevant
internal credit risk grade depending on their credit
quality. The quantitative information is a primary
indicator of significant increase in credit risk and is based
on the change in lifetime PD.
The PDs used are forward-looking and the Bank uses the
same methodologies and data used to measure the loss

allowance for

ECL.

The qualitative factors that indicate significant increase
in credit risk are reflected in PD models on a timely basis.
However the Bank still considers separately some
qualitative factors to assess if credit risk has increased
significantly. For corporate lending there is particular
focus on assets that are included on a 'watch list' given
an exposure is on a watch list once there is a concern
that the creditworthiness of the specific counterparty

impaired. Therefore credit impaired assets will include
defaulted assets, but will also include other nondefaulted given the definition of credit impaired is
broader than the definition of default.
2.14 Significant increase in credit risk
The Bank monitors all financial assets, issued loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are
subject to the impairment requirements to assess
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. lf there has been a
significant increase in credit risk the Bank will measure
the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12ECL.

The Bank's accounting policy is not to use the practical
expedient that financial assets with 'low' credit risk at
the reporting date are deemed not to have had a
significant increase in credit risk. As a result the Bank
monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts that are subject to
impairment for significant increase in credit risk.

ln assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Bank compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument

\\
.(

information.

economic information.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligation, the Bank takes into account both
qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information
assessed depends on the type of the asset. Quantitative
indicators are also key inputs in this analysis. The Bank
uses a variety of sources of information to assess default
which are either developed internally or obtained from
external sources.

month

with the risk of a default occurring that was anticipated
for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date
when the financial instrument was first recognised. ln
making this assessment, the Bank considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort, based on the
Bank's historical experience and expert credit
assessment including forward-looking
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has deteriorated.

Covid-19 triggered increase in2O2Q PD that led to
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) across the
economy.

2.L5 Modification and derecognition of financial assets
A modification of a financial asset occurs when the
contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial
asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between
initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A
modification affects the amount and/or timing of the
contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future
date. ln addition, the introduction or adjustment of
existing covenants of an existing loan would constitute a
modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do
not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may affect
the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or
is not met (e.g. a change to the increase in the interest
rate that arises when covenants are breached).

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are
modified and the modification does not result in
derecognition, the Bank determines if the financial
asset's credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition by comparing:

The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial
difficulty to maximise collection and minimise the risk
of default. The revised terms in most of the cases
include an extension of the maturity of the loan,
changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan
(principal and interest repayment), reduction in the
amount of cash flows due (principal and interest
forgiveness) and amendments to covenants.

- the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data
at initial recognition and the original contractual
terms; with

- the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date
based on the modified terms.

Where a modification does not lead to derecognition
the Bank calculates the modification loss by comparing

When a financial asset is modified the Bank assesses
whether this modification results in derecognition. A
modification results in derecognition when it gives rise
to substantially different terms. To determine if the
modified terms are substantially different from the
original contractual terms the Bank considers the
following:

the gross carrying amount before and after the
modification (excluding the ECL allowance).
Modification losses for financial assets are included in
the profit or loss account in 'Losses on modification of
financial assets'. Then the Group measures ECL for the
modified asset, where the expected cash flows arising
from the modified financial asset are included in
calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the
original asset.

- Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows
after modification are no longer SPPI, change in
currency or when rights to cash flows between the
original counterparties expire because a new debtor
replaces the original debtor (unless both debtors are
under common control), the extent of change in
interest rates, and maturity. lf these do not clearly
indicate a substantial modification, then;

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the asset's cash flows expire
(including expiry arising from a modification with
substantially different terms), or when the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset are transferred to another
entity. lf the Bank neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Bank recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
lf the Bank retains substantially all the risks and

- A quantitative assessment is performed to compare
the present value of the remaining contractual cash
flows under the original terms with the contractual
cash flows under the revised terms, both amounts
discounted at the original effective interest.

lf the difference in present value is greater than 10%
the Group deems the arrangement is substantially
different leading to derecognition. When performing a
quantitative assessment of a modification or
renegotiation of a credit-impaired financial asset or a
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset
that was subject to a write-off, the group considers
the expected (rather than the contractual) cash flows
before modification or renegotiation and compares
those with the contractual cash flows after
modification or renegotiation.

rewards of ownership of

as if

past due status under the new

terms.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain/loss that had been
recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss, with the exception of
equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI,
where the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised
in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

2.16 Write-off
Loans and debt securities are written off when the

the borrower is in

,.1
,.(

transferred financial asset,

and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

ln the case where the financial asset is derecognised
the loss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the date of
derecognition to determine the net carrying amount
of the asset at that date. The difference between this
revised carrying amount and the fair value of the new
financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain
or loss on derecognition. The new financial asset will
have a loss allowance measured based on 12-month
ECL except in the rare occasions where the new loan is
considered to be originated credit impaired. This
applies only in the case where the fair value of the
new loan is recognised at a significant discount to its
revised par amount because there remains a high risk
of default which has not been reduced by the
modification. The Bank monitors credit risk of
modified financial assets by evaluating qualitative and

quantitative information, such

a

the Bank continues to recognise the financial asset

\
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Bank has no reasonable expectations of recovering the
financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it).
This is the case when the Bank determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. The Bank may apply
enforcement activities to financial assets written off.
Recoveries resulting from the Bank's enforcement
activities will result in impairment gains.

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.20 Morlificcttion and derecognition of t'inctncial

liabilities
2.1^7

Presentotiott of allowonce for

ECL

The Bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

in the

statement of financial positiotr
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the
statement of financial position as follows:
- for financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a

deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

2.21. Derivotive financial instruntents

- for debt instruments measured at FVOCI: as a
deduction from the carrying amount of the assets

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial
instruments some of which are held for trading while
others are held to manage essentially its exposure to
foreign exchange rate risk. Derivative held include
foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate
swaps, cross currency interest rate swaps and credit
default swaps. Derivatives are initially recognised at
fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at each balance sheet date. The resulting
gain/loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

- for loan commitments and financial guarantee

contracts: as a provision; and
- where a financial instrument includes both a drawn
and an undrawn component, and the Bank cannot

identify the ECL on the loan commitment component
separately from those on the drawn component: the
Group presents a combined loss allowance for both
components. The combined amount is presented as a
deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance
over the gross amount of the drawn component is
presented as a provision.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as
a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative
fair value is recognised as a financial liability.

2.L8 Finonciql liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments that are issued are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual

2.22 Hedge accountitrq
During the current period, the Bank has not recorded
any hedge relationship (fair value hedge, cash flow
hedge, hedge of net investments in foreign

arrangement.
A financial liability is a contractual obligation to
deliver cash or another financial asset or to exchange
financial assets or financial liabilities with another

operations).
2.23 Financiol guorantee

entity under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the Bank or a contract that will or
may be settled in the Bank's own equity instruments
and is a non-derivative contract for which the Bank is
or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of its
own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over
own equity that will or may be settled other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash (or another
financial asset) for a fixed number of the Group's own
equity instruments.

The Bank gives financial guarantees, consisting of
letters of credit, guarantees and acceptances.
Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value, in 'Other liabilities'
being the premium received. Subsequently, the FGC is
measured at the 'higher of:

.
.

the

IFRS

9 Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance;

the amount initially recognised (i.e. fair value) less
any cumulative amount of income/ amortisation
recognised.

2..L9 Finonciol liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as 'other financial
liabilities'. For all financial liabilities the amount

presented on the statement of financial position
represent all amounts payable including interest
accruals. For the current period, the Bank has not
recorded any financial liabilities being classified as
financial liabilities at FWPL.
Other financial liabilities, including deposits and
borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

I
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

lease term. The right-of-use assets are presented

2.24 'Day L' prot'it

within Property, equipment and right-of-use assets
and are subject to impairment in line with the
Bank's policy on lmpairment of non-financial

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is
different to the fair value from other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or
based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable markets, the Bank
immediately recognises the difference between the
transaction price and fair value (a Day 1 profit) in the
statement of profit and loss in 'Net trading income'.

assets.
Lease liabilities - At the commencement date of
the lease, the Bank recognises lease liabilities

measured at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (less any lease
incentives receivable), variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Bank and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease

ln cases where use is made of data which is not
observable, the difference between the transaction
price and model value is only recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the inputs become
observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

term reflects exercising the option to terminate.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an

2.25 Subordinated debt
These are long-term debt liabilities carried at
amortised cost.

index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the

period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

2.26 Offsetting financiol instruntents
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position only if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not
generally the case with master netting agreements,
and the related assets and liabilities are presented
gross in the statement of financial position.

Bank as a lessor - As a lessor BoA UK classifies its
leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset and classified as an operating lease if
it does not. Leases in which the Bank does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included
in "other operating income" line in the statement of
profit or loss due to its operating nature. lnitial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as other operating income in the
period in which they are earned.

2.27 Leasing
The Bank assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.
Bank as a lessee - The Bank applies a single
recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Bank recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

2.28 Cash and cosh equivctlents
Cash and cash equivalents as referred to in the cash
flow statement comprise cash on hand, balances with
central Banks and amounts due from Banks on
demand or with an original maturity of three months

or less. Cash and cash equivalent are carried at
amortised cost in the statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets - The Bank recognises right-ofuse assets at the commencement date of the lease
(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

'(l
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For the purpose of the cash flow statement the Bank's
operating activities include cash flows from loans and

advances, customer deposits and derivative financial
instruments, The Bank's financing activities comprise
movements in issued share capital and subordinated

debt.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.jL Other intongible assets
2.29. Business contbinations ctnd goodwill

lntangible assets include the value of development
costs and computer software. Expenditure on
internally developed intangible assets, excluding

Business combinations are accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting. This involves
recognising identifiable assets (including previously
unrecognised intangible assets) and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities and excluding future
restructuring) of the acquired business at fair value.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
values of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recognised as goodwill.

development expenditure, is taken to the statement
of profit and loss in the year in which it is incurred.
Development expenditure is recognised as an
intangible asset only after its technical feasibility and
commercial viability can be demonstrated. lntangible
assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following the initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Bank's interest
in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired. Following initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed
for impairment, annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to write down the cost of intangible assets to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives.
The residual estimated useful lives from
2O2O are as

l January

follows:

- Licences: 5 to 10 years;
- Computer software - 3 to 10 years; and

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the

- Development costs - 3

acquisition date, allocated to each ofthe Bank's cashgenerating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities acquired are assigned to
those units. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated:

.
.

2.32 lmpoirntent of non-financiol assets

is not larger than an operating segment as defined
IFRS

8 Operating Segments.

2.30 Property, equipment and right-of-use ossets
Property ,Plant and Equipment and Right -of-use
Assets, which consist of computer hardware and

furniture and equipment are stated at cost

5 years.

The Bank assesses at each reporting date, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired,
whether there is an indication that a non-financial
asset may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Bank makes an estimate of the asset's
recoverable amount (which is the greater of an asset
's fairvalue less costs to sell, or its value in use).
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

represents the lowest level within the Bank at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes; and

under

to

2.33 Pension benefits

less

The Bank operates a defined contribution pension
plan. The contribution payable to a defined
contribution plan is in proportion to the services

accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method to write down the cost
of Property ,Plant and Equipment and Right -of-use
Assets to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives. The residual estimated useful lives from 1

rendered to the Bank by the employees and is
recorded as an expense under'Personnel expenses'

January 2020 are as follows:
- Computer hardware - 3 to 5 years; and

2.34 Provisions

- Furniture and equipment - 5 years to 9 years.

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Right-of-use assets are presented together with
Property ,Plant and Equipment and Right -of-use
Assets in the statement of financial position - refer to
the accounting policy 2.27. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

't \,
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty

2.35 Taxes
Current tax and liabilities for the current and prior years
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the
reporting date.

The directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at

the reporting date between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects onlythat
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

3.1 Critical judgements in applying the Bonk's

accounting policies
The following are the criticaljudgements, apart from

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future

taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered. Detailed plans are produced for the next
financial year, and using this as a basis, forecasts are
produced for the following years.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Current tax and deferred tax relating to items
recognised directly in other comprehensive income are
also recognised in other comprehensive income and not
in the statement of profit and loss.
2.36 Dividends on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a
liability and deducted from equity when they are
approved by the Bank's shareholders.

lnterim dividends are deducted from equity when they
are declared and are no longer at the discretion of the
Bank.

Dividends for the year that are approved after the
reporting date are disclosed as an event after the
reporting date.

./--
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those involving estimations (which are dealt with
separately below), that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Bank's accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in financial statements:
Business model assessment - Classification and
measurement of financial assets depends on the
results of the SPPI and the business model test
(please see financial assets sections of note 2). The
Bank determines the business model at a level that
reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective.

liability, the Bank uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where such Level 1 inputs are
not available the Bank uses valuation models to

Significant increase of credit risk - As explained in
note 2, ECL are measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2
when its credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. ln assessing whether the credit
risk of an asset has significantly increased the Bank
takes into account qualitative and quantitative
reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information.

determine the fair value of its financial instruments.
Deferred tax assets - The Bank produces a business
plan that is used in order to assess deferred tax
assets. The business plan forecast future taxable
profitability in using various assumptions subject to
estimation.

lmpairment of goodwill - Goodwill is tested at each
reporting date for impairment and the evaluation
requires significant management judgement in
estimating the present value of future estimated
cash flows expected to be derived from the cash

Models and assumptions used - The Bank uses
various models and assumptions in measuring fair
value of financial assets as well as in estimating ECL.
Judgement is applied in identifying the most
appropriate model for each type of asset, as well as
for determining the assumptions used in these
models, including assumptions that relate to key
drivers of credit risk.

generating units (CGU) to which goodwill has been
allocated. Goodwill arising from business
combination is allocated to CGU or group of CGU's
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Assets are grouped together into
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that is largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs. Refer to note 20.

Determination of the lease term for lease contracts

with renewal and termination options (8ank

as a

lessee) - The Bank determines the lease term as the
non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it
is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is
reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Bank has
several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Bank applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether
or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise either
the renewal or termination.

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate - The
Bank cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate ('lBR') to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Bank would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Bank 'would have to pay', which
requires estimation when no observable rates are
available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease. The Bank
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required
to make certain entity-specific adjustments (such as
the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating, or to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease).

3.2 Key sources of estintation uncertainty
The following are key estimations that the directors
have used in the process of applying the Bank's
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial

statements:

Probability of default - PD constitutes a key input in
measuring ECL. PD is an estimate of the likelihood of
default over a given time horizon, the calculation of

Revenue recognition - Fee income
The audit committee considered the nature of fees
for loans to be recognised as an adjustment to the
effective interest on loans and the output from the
process for monitoring effective interest rate

which includes historical data, assumptions and
expectations of future conditions.

adjustments.
loss Given Default - LGD is an estimate of the loss
arising on default. lt is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those
that the lender would expect to receive, taking into
account cash flows from collateral and integral credit
enhancements.
Fair value measurement and valuation process - ln
estimating the fair value of a financial asset or a

,1

,$
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4. New and revised IFRSs in issue

adopt early.

The standards, amendments, and interpretations,
which are relevant to the Company, and may have a
material effect on the Company's forthcoming
financial statements are as follows. The adoption of all
other standards, amendments, and interpretations
are not expected to have a material impact.

The following amendments are effective for the

period beginning

Amendments to IFRS 4 lnsurance contracts
deferral of IFRS 9

Below is a list of new and revised IFRSs that are
adopted for the year ending 31 December 2020:

Amendments to IFRS 16 for Covid - 19 rent
concessions beyond 30 June 2021

following standards were reviewed and applied
where necessary in 2020.

.
.
.
.

Amendments to

IFRS

9, IAS 39 and |FRS17: lnterest

The following amendments are effective for the
period beginning l January 2022:

Rate Benchmark Reform ;

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of
Material;

.

-

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

37);

. Annual lmprovements to IFRS Standards

COVID-1g-Related Rent Concessions (Amendments

(Amendments to

IFRS 16)

l

IAS

. Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
lntended Use (Amendments to IAS 16);

Amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations.

to

Onerous Contracts

(Amendments to

Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards; and

Effective

-

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 lnterest rate benchmark reform - Phase 2

- The

.

l January 2021:

IFRS 1, IFRS

2OL8-2O2O

9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41);

and

June 2020, IFRS 16 was amended to

o References

provide a practical expedient for lessees

to

accounting for rent concessions that arise as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic

to Conceptual Framework (Amendments

IFRS 3).

None of them are significantly impacting BoA UK PLC
2020 Financial statements.

and satisfy the following criteria:

The Bank does not expect any other standards issued
by the IASB, but not yet effective, to have a material
impact on the Bank.

(a) The change in lease payments results in revised

consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

(b)The reduction is lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
202L; and
(c) There are is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be
accounted for in accordance with the

practical expedient, which means the lessee does not
whether the rent concession meets

assess

the definition of a lease modification. Lessees apply
other requirements in IFRS 16 in
accounting for the concession.
During the year, BoA UK received rent concessions,
but they do not meet the criteria for the practical
expedient but rather this resulted in lease
modification.
5. New standards, interpretations and amendments
not yet effective
There are a number of standards, amendments to
standards, and interpretations which have been
issued by the IASB that are effective in future
accounting periods that the Bank has decided not to

ffi
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6. Net interest income

Due from banks

6,706

4,O57

Loans and advances to customers

9,625

14,030

5,705

3,629

Financial investments

-

Fair value through OCI

Financial investments

-

Amortised cost

-

Capital Market

3,378

lnterest and slmilar income

22,036

25,O94

Due to banks

(3,743)

(8,004)

Subordinated debt

(32s)

(4,058)
t7,968

lnterest and similar charges
Net interest income

(42t1
(8,425)
16,669

7. Net fees and commission income

Credit related fees and commissions

628

L46

Corporate banking fees

7,52t

t,476

Fees and commission income

2,149

t,622

Fees and

commission expense

(1)

Other fees paid

(2,2291

(2,106)

Fees and commission expense

12,2291

l2,t07l

Net fees and commission expense

(801

G.,

(48s)

8. Net trading income

?[tn

rrcrdt
Foreign exchange
Foreign exchange - derivative foreign exchange
Gain on disposal - FVOCI
Gain on disposal

-

:{j'i

l

(1,561)

(468)

1,863

276

448

t,5L9

Amort. Cost

2,934

Net trading income

7SO

4,26L

9. Personnel expenses

timrm
Wages and salaries

'mn
(5,766)

Social security costs

(1,095)

(5,290)

(s6o)

Pension costs - defined contribution plans

(s87)

(478)

Other benefits

(788)

(3s4)

(8,236)

Personnel expenses

Number of employees

17,082!,

7t

79

7

7

1.9

L2

3

6

Operations ond support

42

54

Paris Branch

28

24

Total BoA UK all locations

99

103

The average monthly number of employees (including Directors) during the year was:
Boord
Corporote ond lnvestment Banking
Treasury and Capital Markets

Directors emoluments, remunerotions and pensions are disclosed
under note 30.

/l/ \\
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10. Other operating expenses

flirm
Marketing expense

TnDn

ffi

(68)

(s4)

(3,308)
(1,555)

Administrative
Professional fees

(3,762l.
(1,94s)

Statutory audit fees

(628)

Other expenses

(950)

(t,97tl

(osrs1

(8,02s1

Other operating expenses

11. Net impairment (losses)

/

{2e3)

recoveries

IFRS 9

Stage

1-

Performing

-

12 months ECL

-

Performing

-

Life time ECL

Stage 2

Stage 3 - Non performing

-

(1,435)

(8)

1,055

390

(1,379)

Life time ECL

Net lmpairment losses

(1,759)

(t,2471
(86s)

m

m.,

12. Taxation

rfliftlil

,Ttm

Analysis of tax credit

/

(charee) for the period

Current lncome tax al t9%

(387)

(under) provision from prior year

289

(2e2)

(charge)

289

(67e)

Deferred Tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

(33)

(3241

Change in tax rate

771

(771l.

33

514

7tt

(s81)

Qver

/

Current tax credit

/

Prior period deferred tax adjustments
Derecognition of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax credit

/

(charge)

1,000

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

(1,260)

Provision for deferred tax
Fixed asset temporary differences

674

609

Short term temporary differences

18

(3e)

Losses and other deductions

5,934

5,28t

Total deferred tax asset

6,626

5,851

5,851

6,640

8

4

56

(2121

7rt

(s81)

6,626

5,851

97

3,882

(1s)

(738)

Movement in provision
Provision at start of period
Correction provision at start
Deferred tax charged in the OCI for the period
Deferred tax charged in the lncome statement for the period
Provision at end of period

Reconciliation of the total tax credit

/ (charge)

Profit before tax
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at standard UK Corporation
Tax rate of 19.O0%
Effects of
Fixed asset differences

(e)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

(14)

Adjustments to brought forward values
Group relief (surrendered)/claimed

36

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods

322

222

Remeasurement of deferred tax for changes in tax rates

717

(6se)

Rate change OCI
Tax credit

/

(721

1,000

(charge) for the period

/;
.( )"..

(1,260)

12. Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax has been measured at
19%o corporation tax rate.

the historical

change in the forecast income of the Bank would
change the period over which the losses will be fully

utilisedby 0-1year.

The deferred tax asset (DTA) recognised as at 31
December 2020 has been recognised on the basis

Any futures changes in tax law could have a
significant effect on the use of losses, including the
period over which the losses are utilised.

that the Directors believe it is probable that
sufficient future taxable profits will be generated
against which it can be utilised.
ln arriving at this conclusion the Directors have
estimated the future profit performance for the Bank
which is subject to a number of variables, lf forecast
profit before tax reduces by 10% the Directors would
still deem recognition of the deferred tax assets as
appropriate.
The Directors are satisfied the calculation of the
deferred tax asset will be utilised with future taxable
prof its.
A sensitivity analysis has been applied to the initial
scenario described previously. A range of +10% - 3%

13. Other comprehensive income

ffi

mrm
Unrealised gain on Financial lnvestments*

889

Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations* *

'I.tn
56

(227l,

Total other comprehensive income

662

*This relates to fair value reserves
for investments
carried at FVOCI (Note 27)

** this relates to foreign currency reserves. (Note
* This is the net of f7.2 million unrealised gain
on

ffi

Etr

55

94s

2,592

(227)

118

7t8

2,7t0

investments and f0.4 m unrealised reserves recycled

to income statement for the year.
***The tax effect for 2OL9 is presented in
other

27)

comprehensive income.

14. Net cash and cash equivalent position

U.I{]t,

'it ,.
i t;,; t'

Balances with central banks

42,930

3,108

Cash and cash equivalent

42,93O

3,109

2g,g5g

44,300

Cash and cash equivalent due from banks

29,859

44,300

Net cash and cash equivalent position

72,789

47,409

Ere[Td

with central banks

Current accounts with other banks
Money market placements with other banks

Loans and advances to banks

108,233

38,085

Due from banks

138,092

85,493

;tltL'
,.

\
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15. Due from banks

ffi

rtmirtiFtil
-

Stage 1

-

Performing

12 months ECL

Due from banks

139,004

(s12)

r38,092

139,004

(s12)

138,092

ffi

ffi
Stage 1

-

Performing

-

ITilEflFlllEEE!

12 months ECL

Due from banks

ffi

85,930

(437)

85,493

85,930

14371

85,493

16. Loans and advances to customers

ffi

titiniElim
Stage 1

-

Performing

-

12 months ECL

Stage 2

-

Performing

-

Life time

Stage 3

-

Non performing

-

156,737

(ss0)

755,787

6,734

(70)

6,664

15,668

(4,9461

to,722

t79,l3g

(5,966)

t73,173

186,857

(432)

786,425

t3,3L7

(535)

L2,687

20,340

(4,055)

76,295

220,514

(5,1231

215,391

ECL

Life time

ECL

Loans and advances to customers

ffi

ffi
Stage 1

-

Performing

-

12 months

Stage 2

-

Performing

-

Life time ECL

Stage 3 - Non performing

-

ECL

Life time

ECL

loans and advances to customers

17. Financial investments

-

Fair value through other comprehensive income

w

ftmffi]

1-

Performing

-

12 months ECL

Stage 2 - Performing

-

Life time ECL

Stage

Financial investments - FVOCI

,lt

i)",

,,

(tii ):

100,569

t 31,889

100,569

131,889

18. Property,Plant and Equipment and Right -of-use Assets

mrm

wm

Cost as at 1 January

L,t2L

6,839

Additions - Right of use assets on initial application of

IFRS 16

1,472

Restated cost as at 1 January

6,839

2,593

60

81

Additions - other Property,Plant and Equipment
Additions - Right of use assets

4,L96

Disposals - other Property,Plant and Equipment

(13)

Disposals - Right of use assets

(484)

Exchange adjustments

35

(31)

6A37

6,839

lt,476l

(6ss)

(11s)

(5s7)

(1,125)

(1s1)

(30)

27

12,75Ol

lL,476l

3,402

5,011

285

352

3,687

5,363

Cost as at 31 December

Depreciation as at

l

January

Charge for the year - Property,Plant and Equipment
Charge for the year - Right -of-use Assets
Disposals
Exchange adjustments

Depreciation as at 31 December
Net book value Right of Use Asset
Net book value PPE
Net bookvalue

f'000

-

2020 Breakdown

Furniture &
Flxtures

Rlght-of-use
lT Hardware

Total

Asset

lands and
buildings

t,14t;

30

Additions

42

18

Disposals

(13)

Cost as at 1 January

Exchange adjustments

5,669

6,839
60

(484)

(4s7l.

33

2

t,203

50

5,194

6,437

(7es)

l24l

(6s71

lt,476l

(tLzl

(71

lL,725l

(1,244',t

(2s)

(1)

(e36)

(32)

lt,782l

(2,750)

2O2O

267

18

3,4O2

3,687

3tlt2l20l9

346

6

5,011

5,363

Cost as at 31 December

Depreciatlon as at

l

January

Charge for the year

35

Disposals
Exchange adjustments

Depreciation as at 31 December
Net book vaf ue 3tl
Net book value

tzl

G,,

(30)

-

19. lntangible assets

computer software

ftrm
Cost as at

I January

Additions

T.tm

rr'Ig

4,786

4,453

63

333

4,849

4,796

Disposals
Cost as at 31 December

Amortlsation as at

l

lz,tuq

January

Charge for the year

(8s2)

(1,383)
(76Ll,

Disposals

(2,996)

Amonisation as at 31 December
Net bookvalue

1r853

l2,t44l
2,642

The remaining useful life of the Bank's intangible asset is between 3 to 5 years

20. Goodwill
[rcr|Id
As

at lJanuary

lmpairment brought forward
As

at

31 December

Exchange adjustments

Net bookvalue

2mm

FIIIF]

13,393

13,999

(4,854)

(4,354)

8,539

9,OU

512

(s04)

9,051

8,540

A. lnlormation about geographical areos
Goodwill acquired through business combinations
has been allocated to two individual cash-generating
units (CGUs) for impairment testing as follows:

.

.

Corporate and lnvestment Banking; and
Treasury and Capital Markets.

[rcrm

mtm

tnrF]

Corporate and lnvestment Banking

5,815

5,486

Treasury and Capital Markets

3,236

3,054

Net bookvalue

9,051

8,540

ln 2O20, the Bank assessed the impairment of Goodwill by
considering the recoverable amounts of the CGUs.

@"

Key dssumptions used in value in use calculations
The recoverable amounts ofthe above CGUs have
been determined based on a value in use calculation,
using cash flow projections in perpetuity based on
business plans approved by senior management for 5
years with an assumption of steady 2-3% growth in
future years after the 5 years period and then
discounted at a rate of LLo/o. These assumptions are
considered by management to be reasonable. These
business plans, which also form the basis of the

assessment ofthe deferred tax recognition (see note
13), assume adequate capital to cover asset growth.

.

Average growth rate would need to fall below
negative 3.6% over the forecast period

Net operating income : Net operating income
are based on management assessments and are in
line with values achieved prior 2019. These are
maintained over the budget period for anticipated
market conditions.
Discount rates: Discount rates reflect management's
estimated return on the Bank's capital employed
(RocE).

The calculation of value in use for both of the CGUs
does not lead to any indication of additional

impairment.
The sensitivity to the key assumptions before a write
down is required (assuming other factors remain
constant), are as follows:
. The discount rate would need to exceed 18%.

Projected growth rates: Projected growth rates are
based on the Bank's ability to fully utilise its capital,
together with its assessment of market conditions in
Africa.

21. Other assets

VAT recoverable

285

257

1,974

529

233

236

4,777

4,246

378

592

Lease receivables

7,3L7

1,963

Other assets

8,958

7,717

Current accounts

2L,730

71,L34

Term deposits due to banks

52,402

3,795

Due to fellow group undertakings less than 1 year

t2,827

3,44t

Prepayments
Rent deposit
Due from ultimate parent undertaking

Other sundry receivables

22. Due to banks

Due

to ultimate parent undertaking

Due

to banks

Due to fellow group undertakings are money market
deposits from subsidiaries of BMCE Bank of Africa
Group other than the ultimate parent company
(Banque Marocaine du Commerce Exterieur S.A).

t89,32L
276,280

244,790
263,150

These deposits are at commercial arms length rates.

23. Due to customers

99,556

Current accounts
Term deposits

94,695
605

Due to customers

99,556

((Q",,

95,291

24. Other liabilities

ffi

f:fifm

7nm

Accounts payable

7,267

966

Accruals

2,934

2,074

Other taxes and social security costs

(226)

(ss)

Contracts Liabilities

1,951

2,058

261

29

Liabilities relating to sublease

7,3L7

1,863

Lease liabilities

3,237

4,787

Other liabilities

t'o,ut

11,722

("Deferred income")

Other payables

lease liabilities details
f:rcIaf'l

zirft'l

As at 1 January

4,787

Additions

ffi
5,664

lnterest expense
Lease payments

Effect of modification of lease

111

72

(t,2L7l

(72s)

(4so)

Exchange differences and advance rent
As at 31 December

46

12241

9,237

4,787

TIJm]

ENTE

L5,924

15,052

193

L79

The Lease liabilities of the Bank are related solely to property rent (as per lFRS16).

25. Subordinated debt
nrcrm
Principal

Accrued lnterest

t6,ll7

Subordinated debt
Subordinated debt represent subordinated loans of
€77,7OOk 2%fixed rate notes granted bythe parent
company with a redemption date of 2O26.

56

15,23t

25. Subordinated debt - Continued

flirm

ffi

2II'IJ

t5,23t

Group subordinated debt

Fmrdil

'IIIF

ffi

(323)

ffi

rmillr-hrEl
325

884

fi

riTIiE-fiTEil

EtrE

L6,294 (6L71 (867)

Group subordinated debt

t6,tt7

42t

t5,23t

26. Share capital and reserves

,Ilm

Fgirdit

ffi

Share capital

Authorised
150,000,000 ordinary shares of

f1

each

lssued, called up and fully paid
t02,t73,OOO shares ordinary shares of €1 each

to2,r73
to2,L73

Share capital as at 31 December

r02,r73

t02,t73

All shares rank equally with one vote per share. There is no entitlement to fixed income

Reserves
Reserves - FVOCI

2,L88

7,243

Foreign currency translation

(2s8)

(7tl

(21,4201 (22,5251
(19,5301 (21,353)
82,U? S0,g2O

Accumulated losses
Reserves as at 31 December
Share capltal and reserves

27. Events after the reporting date
Taxation

i

The Government announced in the Spring 2021
budget of their intention to increase the corporation
tax to 25% on 1 April 2023. as the rate is not
substantively enacted yet at the year end, the Bank
still uses 19% ruling rate in calculating the deferred

tax assets.
Name Change
On the 20th July 2021. ,the board ofthe Bank passed
a resolution to change the name from BMCE Bank

lnternational United Kingdom Plc to Bank Of Africa
United Kingdom Plc
The Directors confirm, aside from the above taxation
and name change, that there are no other significant
events since 31 December 2020 that require
disclosure.

{

il
f
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28. Additional cash flow information

mm

ffitr

Cash and balances with central banks

42,930

3,109

Current accounts with other banks

29,859
72,789

rilir.r.l

Cash and cash equivalent (note 14)

44,3OO

47A08

Net (increase) / decrease in:

(66,056)

Due from banks

Derivative Financial lnstruments

(178)

Loans and advances to customers

38,575

Other assets

(t,7481

/ (decrease)

(23l,
(L,77Ol
883

l29,4o7l

Change in operating assets

Net increase

43,L28

42,2t8

in:

L2,182

Due to banks

Derivative financial instruments

to2

4,742
1,400
t8,246

Due to customers

Other liabilities
Change in operating liabilities

lt03,272l
33
(14,948)

(L,4L4l
(119,6011

Depreciation and amortisation

2,O99

1,569

Amortisation of premium and discount for FVOCI instruments

1,546

1,515

lmpairment provisions

1,759

865

(448)
ttt

Gain on disposal of FVOCI instruments
Finance lease expense

Net foreign exchange gains

/

143
5,209

(losses)

Other items included in profit before tax

(4,4s21
72
(1,118)
(1,5491

{

il
,l
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29. Contingent liabilities and commitments
These are credit-related instruments which include
guarantees and commitments to extend credit. The

drawn upon, the total of the contract amounts is not
representative of future cash requirements.

contractual amounts represent the amount at risk
should the contract be fully drawn upon and the client

These obligations are not recognised on the balance

defaults.

sheet but they contain credit risk and are therefore
part of the overall risk of the Bank.

Since a significant portion of guarantees and

The total outstanding commitments and contingent

commitments are expected to expire without being

liabilities are as follows:

Financial guarantees

t6,779

6,882

Contingent liabilities

16,779

6,882

Letters of credit

6O,37L

Undrawn commitments to lend

50,337

3,859

Commitments

110,709

56,307

Contingent liabilities and commitments

t27,487

63,199

52,449

Finonce leose commitments
Bank as lessee
The Bank contracted non-cancellable leases for its
offices in London, Paris, Zurich and Dubai.
The lease in Paris is shared with other group
companies.
As from January, 1st 2019, the Bank applied IFRS 16 to

its lease contracts.
Non-cancellable lease payments as at 31
December 2020 were as follows:

Within one year

7,726

r,407

After one year but not more than five years

2,970

77

Lease commitments expiring

4596

t,484

m,,

29. Contingent liabilities and commitments

cancellable operating leases as at 31 Decemb er 2020
are as follows:

(continued)
Bank as lessor

-

The Bank subleased a portion of its Paris premises.
The Bank monitors regularly the collection of the
rentals.
Future minimum rentals receivable under the non-

Iilifilil

IIIF]

'Em
Within one year

696

643

Lease commitments receivable

696

643

30. Compensation and transactions with key
management personnel of the Bank

a pension contribution. The non-executive Directors
do not receive pension entitlements from the Bank.

The non-executive Directors do not receive pension

The Bank did not enter into transactions,

entitlements from the Bank.

arrangements and agreements involving Directors,
senior management and their business associates, or

Key management personnel include CEO, CFO, COO

close family members.

and MD of Treasury and Capital Markets along with
the directors of the Bank.
One director was a member of the defined
contribution scheme in 2020 with a total contribution
of 25k. No other key management personnel was paid

w'It

FrcTM

Short-term employee benefits

914

795

Compensatlon of (CEO; CFO, COO; MD|

914

795

Short-term employee benefits

s85

545

Compensatlon of Dlrectors other than hlghest pald director

585

545

Aggregate emoluments and benefits

325

285

Highest pald Dlrector

325

28s

1,824

Total compensation of key management personnel

Only 3 directors (2019: 4 directors) received remunerotion
UK during the year.

lrom

1,625

BoA

31. Related party transactions

and provides a range ofservices from the parent and

The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of BMCE
lnternational (Holdings) plc. The ultimate parent
company of the Bank is Banque Marocaine du
Commerce Exterieur S.A. (BMCE).

related parties, including funding, comfort letter (from
Group parent), and various administrative services. The
funding from the group parent can only be terminated
with a notice of 367 days.

During the year there have been transactions between
the Bank, its parent company, the ultimate parent
company and other related parties. The Bank receives

@
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31. Related party transactions (continued)

parties are at normal commercial rates. ln addition to
entities within the scope of BMCE Group, key
management personnel are also considered as related
parties. Compensations are disclosed in note 30.

The outstanding balances at the year end arose from
the ordinary course of business and are unsecured
and are all payable within a year. The interest, fees
and commissions paid to or received from related

t:riliriElim

l3fV/fal

lnterest charged by

(4,011)

lnterest received from
Fees and

commission paid to

Fees and

commission received from

EAE\

Net trading income/(expense)

Amounts owed by

151

303

77

56

133

209

2,2t0

2Atg

2tg,74g

(331)

(4e641

(4,633)

(13s)

Financial guarantees received

5,552

[re[EEnm

(13s1

9,509

FrnA

EIMEE

(7,3721 (460)

lnterest charged by
lnterest received from

commission received from

3

206,844 t2,9O4

Financial guarantees and commitments given

Fees and

(40341

3

Amounts owed to

commission paid to

(23)

t52

Other operating expenses paid to

Fees and

TirET

161
(1)
105

Net trading income/(expense)

355

Other operating expenses paid to

764

15,060

lrnET
17,8321

161
(11

t2t

226

(1,041)

{6861

t7L

935

Amounts owed to

269,244 5,649

274,993

Amounts owed by

(4,75L1 (9s9)

(5,7101

Financial guarantees and commitments given

(140)

Financial guarantees received

14,599

BMCE = Banque Marocaine du Commerce Exterieur S.A
and related subsidiaries
BOA = Bank of Africa Group (*)

454

6,906

314
21,395

{

(*) Company owned and controlled directly by Banque
Morocoine du Commerce Exterieur S.A

61
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32. Risk management

risk (country risk, counterparty risk);

A. lntroductiort

regulatory developments and their impact
on the prices of marketable assets;

Effective risk management is an ongoing fundamental
strategy for the Bank. Whilst it is in general a key
capability for a successful financial services provider, risk
management also plays a significant role in the Bank's
current stage of development and is critical to the

the valuation of market assets and the
measurement of market risk; and
market risk limits.

Bank's target of sustainable profitability. The key

Audit Committee:

components of the Bank's risk management
infrastructure are:

.
.

The Audit Committee consists of independent nonexecutive Directors (including the Chairman of the
Audit Committee). The Audit Committee meets
quarterly, or as frequently as is required to carry out
properly its functions. The Audit Committee's
responsibility is one of oversight and review. lt does
not provide expert advice nor exercise any executive
role. The Audit Committee's role is to assist the Board

Governance; and
Risk management processes.

The main risks facing the Bank are:

.
.
.
.

Credit risk;
Liquidity risk;

in monitoring:

Market risk; and
Operational risk.

B. Governonce

-

the integrity of the financial statements of
the Bank;

-

the adequacy and effectiveness of the
systems of internal controls of the Bank;

-

the qualifications and independence of the
Bank's external auditors and the
performance of the Bank's internal and
external auditors; and

-

any other relevant issue.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk
management approach and for approving the risk
policies. lt is supported by a number of committees as

follows:
Risk Management Department (RMD) and Risk
Committee:

/

r'

C,

The monitoring and controlling of risk is primarily
performed against limits established by the Bank. These
limits are established using an approved 'Credit Policies
and Procedures Manual', 'Market Risk Policies and
Procedures Manual' and 'Operational Risk Policies and
Procedures Manual'. Additionally, some limits are set via
the Bank's Risk Appetite Statement (RAS).

The Credit Risk Committee approves all credit
applications within its delegated lending authority
and recommend to the Risk Committee those
applications outside of its delegated authority.

The Board Risk Committee assiststhe Board in
monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Bank's risk management policies and processes..
Asset and Liability Committee (AICO) is responsible
for assisting the board and senior management in the

oversight of policies, strategies and processes. The
role of ALCO is to assist the Bank in fulfilling its
responsibilities relating to the oversight of the Bank's
market risk management policies, strategies and
processes that have the potential to impact
significantly on the Bank's earnings performance and
capital. ALCO's responsibilities include management
and review of:

-

the Bank's exposure to market risk and its

-

the Bank's liquidity;

hedging strategy;

-

the usage of capital including ensuring
external regulatory requirements are met;
other categories of risk linked to market

i(

Mectsuring and reporting systems

\'
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The Bank's policy is to generate reports on a daily basis
from information compiled from all business systems,
then analysed to identify control risks appropriately and
promptly. These reports include (but are not limited to)
exposure reports (counterparty exposure, country
exposure, sector exposure), excess reports and
concentration risks across all counterparties, countries

and industries.
Other more detailed reports are compiled and reported

to the Board on a quarterly basis.
D. Mitigcttion
As part of its overall risk management strategy the Bank

may use derivatives and other financial instruments to
manage exposures to interest rates, foreign currencies,
credit risks and to pre-hedge those expected from future
tra nsactions

33. Credit risk

conditions.

Credit risk is one of the major risk areas for the Bank
and is defined as the risk of loss from default by
debtors (including bond issuers) or trading
counterparties.

Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the
Bank's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry or geographical location.

Management Department.

ln order to avoid excessive concentration of risk the
Bank's policies and procedures include specific
guidelines regarding the importance of portfolio
diversification. ldentified concentrations of credit risk
are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective
hedging may be used within the Bank to manage risk
concentrations at both the relationship and industry
levels.

The Bank has an established credit review process to
provide a periodic assessment of the creditworthiness
of counterparties. An internal credit risk classification
system is used to assess and allocate a credit risk

The Bank has country limits, sector limits and
counterparty limits set in place and monitored
accordingly in order that the Bank's portfolio is
maintained at a level that is appropriately diversified.

All such risks taken by the Bank must have been
approved at the appropriate levels, and must adhere
to the policies and procedures contained within the
Credit Risk Policy. Monitoring credit risk on a day-today basis, and making sure that exposures are within
approved limits, a key responsibility of the Risk

grade notwithstanding the external rating assigned.

Concentrations of risks are managed by

client/counterparty, by geographical region and by
Other assets ond other liabilities have been excluded
from tables below as impocts on credit risk notes have
been deemed not moterial.

A. Risk cancentrations of the mqximum exposure to
credit risk
Risk concentrations arise when a number of
counterparties are engaged in similar business
activities or activities in the same geographic region or
have similar economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other

t:tiliriEliElit

industry sector.
B. Geographical analysis

The Bank's concentration of maximum exposure to
credit risk, before taking into account any collateral
held or other credit enhancements can be analysed by
the following geographical regions:

fftral

Europe

135,161

United Kingdom

55,240

Africa

205,62t

Others

59,t74

Total

455,196

The total amount here above include only book assets
(and does not include PPE, Goodwilland other

intangible assets, Deferred tax asset and other assets)

Europe

tI4,465

United Kingdom

85,749

Africa

!47,688

Others

88,233

Total

436,135

@.,

33. Credit risk (continued)
The general credit worthiness of a corporate customer
tends to be the most relevant determinant of credit
limit extended to it. However, collateral provides
additional security and the Bank generally requests
that corporate borrowers provide it. The Bank may
take collateral in the form of floating charges over all
corporate assets and other lines, credit insurance and
guarantees.
Because of the Bank's focus on corporate credit
worthiness, the Bank does not routinely update the
valuation of the collateral held against all loans to
corporate customers. Valuation of collateral is
updated when the credit risk of a loan deteriorates
significantly and the loan is monitored more closely.
For impaired loans, the Bank obtains an appraisal of
collateral because the current value of the collateral
an input to the impairment measurement.

C.

is

Maxintum exposure tcs credit risk without takingl

accoLnlt of any collateral and other credit

enhancements

The table below shows the maximum exposure to
credit risk for the components of the statement of
financial position, including derivatives.
The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the

effect of mitigation through the use of collateral
agreements:

t'{irff]

u.tm

Cash and balances with central banks

42,930

Due from banks

Derivative financial instru ments

738,O92

85,493

433

2s4

L73,773
100,569
455,t97

Loans and advances to customers

Financial investment - FVOCI

Total

215,391
131,989
436,135

Contingent liabilities

7!,3tt

86,946

Commitments

25,209

3,859

Total

95,520

90,805

55t,717

Contingent liabilities and commitments

,(

\,
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526,940

33. Credit risk (continued)
An industry sector analysis of the Bank's financial
assets, before and after taking into account collateral
held or other credit enhancements, is as follows:

ffi ffi ffi ffi

Erefrld

A Agriculture, forestry and fishing
-

BC

-

Mining and quarrying
Manufacturing

D - Electricity, gas,
F

-

11,935

steam and air supply

Construction

G - Wholesale

and retail trade

H -Transport and storage
J

- lnformation and communication

K

- Financial and insurance activities

L

- Real estate activities

13,509

13,509

6,330

13,191

4,679

5,205

6,9o7

650

32,84L

2g,gs4

33,646

29,757

82,939

72,606

44,460

30,524

27,795

25,599

34,077

32,369

25,888

13,053 3t,L84
99,936 t63,40L

159,990
51

M - Professional, scientific and technical activities

11,935

51

T

N - Administrative and support service activities
O - Public administration and defence, compulsory
social security

S

- Other services

17,566

5st,7l7

Total

D. Carrying qmount per class of finonciql assets
whose terms have been renegotiated
No loans have been restructured in2O2O, same as

20L9.
E. Credit quality per closs of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the
Bank using internal credit ratings. Credit Risk Grades
(CRG) generally apply to clients, but can also be
applied to specific transactions where considered
appropriate. All facilities are considered to have the
CRG of the client unless specifically stated otherwise.
The latter will occur only where the transactions are
considered to have a credit risk different to the legal
entity concerned, an example being where some
facilities or transactions are guaranteed by a stronger

entity, or where the source of repayment is from a
stronger entity in a ring-fenced structured finance
transaction (both guarantee and third party
repayment should be integral to the contract).

m.,

17,566

744,977

54

54

205

196

7,966

7,866

181,286 133,997 L62,422

Q - Human health services and social work activities

78,4L5

L24,536

15

15

16,003

16,003

404,596 526,940

423,543

33. Credit risk (continuedI
E. Credit

quality per class of financiol ossets

grade, e.g. Moody's lnvestors Service Baa3 or better,
Fitch Ratings BBB- or better:

The following table shows the credit quality by class
ofasset for loan-related balance sheet lines, based on
the Bank's credit rating system, using the industry
standard credit rating agency definition of investment

ffi

llfirrliFlim
Due from banks

L7,406

w

ffi

121,598

Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances

to

Financial instruments

-

Total

179,L38
L3,592

86,977

30,999

38&146

ffi

flifrfrETrfFl
Due from banks

39,774

Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances

to

Financial instruments

-

69

customers
FVOCI

Total

(912)

433

customers
FVOCI

niIEil

w

433

(5,965)
16,8771

(4371

51,830

80,059

9t,673

346,913

412,267

riilElt
85,493

254

185

22O,5L3

t73,t73
100,559

ffiffi

46,L56

138,092

(5,t221

2t5,39L
13L,889

(5,5591

43t,O27

Focus on Financial lnstruments- FVOCI ratings

Tnrn

EftTdD

Rated AAA

zirFt
38,020

Rated BBB+ to BBB.
Rated BB+ and Below

53,630

55,395

Government Bonds and Treasury Bllls

53,630

93,415

Rated A-

Rated BBB+ to BBB-

5,564

5,700

Rated BB+ and Below

33,347

24,662

Financial lnstitution Bonds

38,911

30,362

RAtCd BBB+ tO BBB-

8,028

8,!L2

Corporate Bonds

8,028

8,L12

100,569

Total

@,,

131,889

fi

33. Credit risk (continued)
F. Credit risk rotings

-

IFRS

9 expected loss model

The Bank uses credit risk grades as a primary input

into the determination of the term structure of the
for exposures. The Bank collects performance and
default information about its credit risk exposures

PD

analysed by jurisdiction or region and by type of
product and borrower as well as by credit risk grading.
The information used is both internal and external
depending on the portfolio assessed. The table below
providesthe Bank's internal credit risk rating scale
and their mappings to PiT PD ranges.

zmn

GTEIIE

u@

IYa-:IrEEEG%

!7I

lnvestment

Excellent

0.000 - 0.030

EnTENTS

lnvestment

Excellent to strong

0.000 - 0.120

EEI''I

lnvestment

Strong to good

0.000- 0.310

Fli-Iilnafllll-:l

lnvestment

Good to satisfactory

o.oo2 -0.744

EFTTEtiliI

Non investment

Satisfactory to acceptable higher risk

o.ot4-2.760

trFfil

Non investment

Acceptable higher risk to marginal

0.244-L2.L96

EreTE

Unsatisfactory

Unsatisfactory

5.79F 19.652

t{.n

Unsatisfactory

Substandard

t7.44t - 31.555

FTrl

Unsatisfactory

Doubtful or bad

h-t!fltrlrftr|

Unsatisfactory

E

Loss

/

Liquidation

4@

51.180

-

52.369

lnsolvency

'mm

EEIffiI

EWI

2.65

0.0007o

45.500/o

lrEDtll

59.03

o.ooo%

4!.85o/o

I

96.52

0.000%

2t.36%

Flr-Efdililil

16.8

o.o70%

34.46%

54.85

O.l7o/o

41.87o/o

274.L2

2.730%

42.94%

7.36

L9.74Yo

78.950/o

4.96

to0o/o

92.5%

E

ETE

FrEftnlil
E-llrrilil

ffrrErfttil

G
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33. Credit risk (continued)
G.

Forword looking informotion

-

IFRS

9 expected loss

model
The IFRS 9 Standard is built upon a forward-looking ECL model that results in more timely recognition of loan losses. The amount
of ECLs is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is reflected in ECL calculations.

the reflection of multiple scenarios is a requirement under the IFRSS standard, the BoA UK model is configured to allow
multiple scenario inputs. The data is sourced from multiple sources (i.e., lMF, S&P, and World Bank) and input under different
scenarios. Each scenario is assigned a weight.
As

The BoA UK Model incorporates the following forward-looking information projected

at

5 years.

1.GDP Growth (%)

2.Change in Unemployment (% total lab force) (%)
3.Change in Equity lndex (%)
4.Change in Energy lndex (%)
S.Change in Non-Energy lndex (%)
6.Change in the Proportion of Downgrades (%)
These factors have got different weights depending on the type of economy that is classified as standard or energy exporting as
shown below.

Standard weights for risk factors

W@Effi

tiBt[+:tltn
GDP

%

tn

oyment (%)
500 %l
ndex (%)

in the

3O/o

3DP Growth %

72%

LLOA

lhange in Unemployment (%)
lhanse in S&P 500 (%l
:hange in Energy lndex (%)
:hange in Non-Energy lndex (%)

30/o

:hange in the Proportion of Downgrades (%)

t2%
s%

y lndex (%)

tn

)ortion of Downgrades (7ol

Energy Commodity Exporters weights for risk factors
EB![itttlll
@:tlEdrilrtE.m
22%
9%
9o/o

30%
8o/o

22%

The forward-looking information is incorporated accordingly on top of market pre-defined benchmarks, i.e. the S&P Long Term

cumulative

PD.

The Bank's model calculates ECL under a two-step process:
i) Estimate the forward-looking PiT PD term structure of the obligor,
ii) Estimate the forward-looking PiT loss given default (LGD) term structure for the financial instrument.

'he model uses 3 economic scenarios in estimating
the PiT PD's. The scenarios and relative weights are given below.
sr?trillltd
E@E
75%

Base

ts%
to%

n order to gain some level of comfort on the weights attributed on each scenario, Management carried out some sensitivity
rnalysis using different weights for each scenario as shown in the table below:

sririlErftt

ulsE

ff

l'ilrlri!fliE

mrailt

70%

tso/o

7,553,243.46

4004

3504

7,607.89t.94

3oo/o

4oo/o

3oo/o

7.564.017.96

4

too/o

75o/o

LSo/o

7.550.1S3.60

5

3oo/o

40%

30%

7,543,783,87

6

to%

75%

75o/o

30o/o

4oo/o

30%

7.624.636.22
7.635.040.60

1

75o/o

2

25o/o

3

n

il

I
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33. Credit risk (continued)
G. Forward looking information

of the loan exposure that are permitted by the
current contractual terms, such as amortisation

-

IFRS

profiles, early repayment or overpayment, changes in
utilisation of undrawn commitments and credit
mitigation actions taken before default.

9 expected

loss model - Continued
The Bank implemented the IFRS 9 solution by
employing recognised models and historical
information from a reputable rating agency.

The Bank measures ECL considering the risk of default

over the maximum contractual period (including
extension options) over which the entity is exposed to
credit risk and not a longer period, even if contract
extension or renewal is common business practice.
However, for financial instruments such as overdraft
facilities that include both a loan and an undrawn
commitment component, the Bank's contractual
ability to demand repayment and cancel the undrawn
commitment does not limit the Bank's exposure to
credit losses to the contractual notice period.

The Bank uses publicly available forecasted

information to generate the Probability of Default
(PD) Points in Time (Pit)for different economies.
To capture the sector risk, BoA UK included the

change in the proportion of downgrades for the three
main sectors: Corporates, Financial lnstitutions and
Sovereigns. Therefore, the probability of default
through the cycle is defined at a granular level for
each counterparty, based on country fundamentals
(macro data), sector data, financial market

For such financial instruments the Bank measures ECL
over the period that it is exposed to credit risk and
ECL could be mitigated by credit risk management
action.

performance and commodities fundamentals.

H. Meosurenrent

of

ECL

The measurement of ECL is based on probability
weighted average credit loss and it is measured on an
individual basis. The Bank does not apply collective

The key inputs used for measuring ECL are

.
.
.

probability of default (PD);
loss given default (LGD); and

basis measurement of ECL.

exposure at default (EAD).

PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a
given time horizon. lt is estimated as at a point in
time. The calculation is based on statistical rating
models and assessed using rating tools tailored to the
various categories of counterparties and exposures.

These statistical models are based on market data

(where available), as well as internal data comprising
both quantitative and qualitative factors. PDs are
estimated considering the contractual maturities of
exposures and estimated prepayment rates. The
estimation is based on current conditions, adjusted to
take into account estimates of future conditions that

willimpact

PD.

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. lt is
based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due and those that the Bank would expect to
receive, taking into account cash flows from any
collateral. The LGD models for secured assets consider
forecasts of future collateral valuation. LGD models
for unsecured assets consider time of recovery,
recovery rates and seniority of claims. The calculation
is on a discounted cash flow basis, where the cash
flows are discounted by the original EIR of the loan.
EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default
date, taking into account expected changes in the
exposure after the reporting date, including
repayments of principal and interest, and expected
drawdowns on committed facilities. The Bank's
modelling approach for EAD reflects expected
changes in the balance outstanding over the lifetime

i(,
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33. Credit risk (continued)
l. Credit quality

-

IFRS

9 expected loss model

The Bank monitors credit risk per class of financial

instrument. The table below outlines the classes

identified, as well as the financial statement line item
and the note that provides an analysis of the items
included in the financial statement line for each class
of financial instrument.
An analysis of the Bank's credit risk concentrations per
class of financial asset is provided in the following
tables. The amounts in the table represent net
carrying amounts.

Cash and cash equivalent

with central banks

flirm

m

inrFl

42,93O

3,109

42,930

3,108

Europe

42,93O

3,108

Total

42,93O

3,108

2:n

Concentration per sector
K

- Financial and insurance activities

Total

Concentration by region

Due from banks

tilirm

7n2m

ffi

Concentration per sector

K

- Financial and insurance activities

Total

138,092

85,493

138,092

85,493

Concentration by region
Europe

45,448

29,654

United Kingdom

38,733

22,597

Africa

48,L78

26,549

Others

5,733

6,593

138,092

85,493

Total

c

il
t
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33. Credit risk (continued)
l. Credit quality

-

IFRS

9 expected loss model

Loans and advances to customers

mrm

mm

mrEl

Concentration per sector
A

-

B

- Mining and quarrying

C

-

D

- Electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning supply

Agriculture, forestry and fishing

78
28

1,499

8,20L

11,551

4836

7,OO4

Construction

!4,793

16,656

G-

Wholesale and retail trade

66,150

52,327

H-

Transport and storage

t4,76t

23,9L1

8,961

15,L57

-

F

Manufacturing

J

- lnformation and communication

K

- Financial and insurance activities

L

- Real estate activities

35,432

N - Administrative and support service activities
O

- Public administration and defence, compulsory social security

S

- Other services

59

6L

3

8,508

55,303

42,lgg
t,o97

l73,ll3

Total

215,391

Concentration by region
Europe

30,381

47,096

United Kingdom

t6,152

38,247

Africa

86,244

89,053

40,396
173,t73

Others

Total

@
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40,995
215,391

33. Credit risk (continued)
I. Credit quality

-

IFRS

Financial investments

9 expected loss model

-

Fair value through other comprehensive income

flirm

mm

unrrer

8,029

8,LlL

38,911

68,384

27,106

3L,735

Concentration per sector
B

- Mining and quarrying

K

- Financial and insurance activities

O - Public
S

administration and defence, compulsory social security

26,524
100,569

- Other services

Total

23,659
131,889

Concentration by region
Europe

16,396

39,282

Africa

7L,!30

71,28O

Others

13,043

2L,327

100,569

Total

131,889

{
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33. Credit risk (continued)
l. Credit quality

-

IFRS

9 expected loss model

Below is an analysis of the Bank's credit risk
exposure per class of financial asset, internal rating
and "stage" without taking into account the effects of
any collateral or other credit enhancements is
provided in the following tables. Unless specifically
indicated, for financial assets, the amounts in the
table represent gross carrying amounts.

Due from banks

saE

rrerm
AAA to ABBB+ tO B-

Loss

IETETI

15,161

tt7,I83

1L7,183

6,660

6,660

139,004

139,004

(s72l,

(s12)

139,092

138,092

allowance

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2020

g@

15,161

Unrated

Total gross carrying amount

!IE4

loans and advances to customers

g*ltl

nrcrrltr
AAA to A-

to

sr@

2,649

BBB+ tO BCCC+

ffiil

2,649

143,960

C-

6,734

LO,223

D

Unrated

10,328

20,551

5,340

5,340

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2020

6,734

(sso)

(70)

155,786

6,664

- fair value through other comprehensive

rflirm

5

t56,736

allowance

Financial investments

150,594

5

Total gross carrying amount
Loss

ftral

t@!

15,558
(4,945)

10,723

179,138
(5,965)

173,t73

income

qEE

tr@

flirHt

AAA to ABBB+ to B-

101.,242

roL,242

Total gross carrying amount

tOt,242

lot,242

(673)

(673)

100,569

100,569

Loss allowance

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2020

K ;):,,

Y2019
Due from banks

Eil

EreTM
AAA to A-

to

BBB+

B-

Total gross carrylng amount

Carrylng amount as at 31 December20l,9

IftIEI]

25,t39

25,139

60,79t

60,79L

85,930

85,930

(4371

(4371

85,493

85,493

allowance

Loss

W

[@]

loans and advances to customers

ffi:r

mfrld

W

W

iftIEI

AAA to ABBB+

to

t3,3L7

186,857

B-

lmpaired

5,831

Total gross carrying amount
Loss

14,509

186,857

13,3t7

(4321

(636)

t86,q25

12,68t

allowance

Carrying amount as at 31 December2019
Financial investments

- fair value through other comprehensive

5,831

220,514
(5,123)
215,391

income

gEil

Ei4

tlrirm

20,340
(4,055)
16,285

214,683

ffi:E

ilfrEu

AAA to A-

38,087

38,097

BBB+ tO B.

94,034

94,O34

t32,l2l

t32,t2tt

(2321

(2321

131,889

131,889

Total gross carrying amount
Loss allowance

Garrylng amount as at 31 December 2019

t. Collaterdl held

ds security and other credit

enhoncements
The Bank holds collateral or other credit
enhancements to mitigate credit risk associated with

financial assets. The main types of collateral and the
types of assets these are cash collateral, insurances,
guarantees and tangible assets independently valued.
Collaterals relate to instruments that are measured at

amortised cost.

@
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33. Credit risk (continued)
K. Loss qllowances

-

IFRS

9 expected loss model

The tables below analyse the movement of the loss
allowance during the year per class of assets.
Due from banks

g@

[firm
l

loss allowance as at

gE*z

W

iETd

(437)

(437)

(762],

(762l,

287

287

(e12)

(e12)

January 2020

Movement with P&[ impact
New financial asset originated or
purchased
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

loss allowance as at 31 December 2020
Loans and advances to customers

FrcNiI

gEE

sl@'!
l

Loss allowance as at

(173)

January 2020

(1,391)

g@
(3,559)

natEil
(5,123)

Movement with P&t impact
New financial asset originated or
purchased

(41s)

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

(352)

FX and

(41s)

L,32t

(1,360)

{401)

(26)

(26)

(4,945)

(5,9651

other movements

Loss allowance as at 31 December 2020

Financial investments

- fair value through other comprehensive

(70)

income

g@

nrcrm
Loss allowance as at

(eso)

l

January 2020

gE4

W

iftEI

(232\

(2321

(440)

(440)

(1)

(1)

(673)

(673)

Movement with P&t impact
New financial asset originated or
purchased
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2020

2019
Due from banks

w

flirm
Loss allowance as at

l

January 2019

ffiE

q@

iftI?.]]

(304)

(304)

(1s6)

(1s6)

73

73

(10)

(10)

14371

14371

Movement with P&t impact
New financial asset originated or
purchased
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Changes to model assumptions and

methodologies
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2019

ffi

i):"

to customers

Efl

rflirm

W

ffiil

Loss allowance as at 1 January 2019

(s16)

lt,475l

ilrEil

(2,340)

(4,331)

(36)

(37s)

(L,2O7l

(43e)

Movement with P&t impact
New financial asset originated or
purchased

(33s)

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

584

84

Changes to model assumptions and

methodologies
FX

(2)

(2)

and other movements

Loss allowance as at 31 December20tg

- fair

Financial investments

(L3e1)

(173)

other

q@

ffi:4
l

(3,5581

l5,N22l

rncome

flirm
loss allowance as at

25

25

s@

IbTEI

(s0)

(s0)

New financial asset originated or
purchased

(s1)

(s1)

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

(e1)

(s1)

12?21

12?21

January 2019

Movement with P&[ impact

Loss allowance as at 31 December 2019

Financial investments

-

amortised cost

ga:4

rrcrdil
loss allowance as at

l

January 2019

lElGfl

W

tktEu

(201)

(2011

20L

20L

Movement with P&t impact
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

loss allowance as at 31 December 2018

have been affected due to Covid, Le. countries such as Angola, Ethiopia,
9taee

Itaee

1

t,698

2.535

837

2

1.395

70

Staee 3

3,559

4.945

, Ghana

lfull repayment of the Simec Exposure, SHT Chad has been moved to stage 1, while SNPC has
{1,326) lbeen moved stage 3. The decreases were partiallv offset bv movine Profert to stase 2

1i86

lMore

ECL has

been booked on Little Rose and SNPC has been moved to Stage 3

ECL by Stages
f'000
8,000
7,OO0

6,000
5,000

4,000
3,000
2,OOO

1,000

r

Y2019

.Y2O2O

I

Stage

1

Stage

Stage 3

2

Total

837

1,396

3,559

5,792

2,535

70

4,945

7,550

rY2019 tY2020
76

34. Liquidity risk

ratio of net liquid assets to customer liabilities, set to
reflect market conditions.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities when they fall due under normal and stressed
conditions.

The liquidity reserves consist of cash with central banks
and any other high quality liquid assets securities being
sold immediately. The Bank focuses on exposures due to

The Bank has obtained funding, with appropriate
maturities, from its ultimate parent in order to meet its
liquidity needs.

mature within the next month. However the Bank also
monitors all assets and liabilities over their contractual
maturities.

ln stressed situations, the Bank will utilise funding
arrangements under market repurchase agreements and
deposits from the parent Company. This funding will be
provided on an arms-length basis. The liquidity position
is assessed and managed under a variety ofscenarios.

Other ossets ond other liobilities have been excluded
from tables below os impocts on liquidity risk notes hove
been deemed not material.
A, Liquidity reserves

The most important of these is to maintain limits on the

The table below shows the liquidity reserves:

ffi ffi

flirm
Balances with central banks

42,93O

Unencumbered debt securities issued by sovereigns

38,020

Total

B.

3,109

42,93O

41,128

Maturity profile

The table below summarises the maturity profile of
the Bank's assets and liabilities at 31. December 2O2O
based on contractual repayment obligations.

ffi ffi ffi

FrcniEtat]ral

ffi

ffi

iftF:n

Assets
Balances with central banks

42.930

Due from banks

64,257 19.638

Derivative finan cial instrument
Loans and advances to customers

Financial lnvest

-

FVOCT

Total Assets

42.930
38.637

138,092

433

433

3,437 28.478 48.229 70.755 22,274 L73,L73
437
664
6,255 78,624
14,589 100,559
ttt,494 48,780 93.t2t 164.939
36,863 455,197

Llabllities
Due to banks

Derivative financial instrument
Due to customers

38.187

238,052

276,280

135

98.623

Subordinated debt
Total Liabilitles

4L

135

933
193

136.946

t-167

77

99.556

L5,924
15.924

L6,Lt7
392.088

34. tiquidity risk (continuedf
The table below summarises the maturity profile of
the Bank's assets and liabilities at 31 December 2019
based on contractual discounted repayment financial
obligations.

EreNiE[IF,

ffi ffi ffi

ffi ffi

iETHI

Assets
Balances with central banks
Due from banks

Derivative financial instrument

3,109

3,109

58,094 9,508 14,008

3,793

85,493

254

254

customers LL,546 43,777 41,500 100,330 18,138 2!s,39!
Financial lnvestments AFS
455 15,513 23,599 59,388 33,934 131,899
Loans and advances to

Financial Investments HTM

Total Assets

73,457 68,898 79,207 t62,50t

52,072

436,135

Liabilities
Due to banks

Derivative financial instrument
Due to customers

24,Ot2

238,347

34

L,286
180

118,051

253,150

34

94,005

Subordinated debt

Total liabilities

79L

97t

95,29t

15,051 75,231
t,286 238,347 15,051 373,706

{

il
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34. Liquidity risk (continued)
The table below summarises the split of the
statement of the financial position between current

and non-current assets and liabilities:

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks

L22,532

Due from banks

Derivative financial instruments

-

15,560

FVOCI

8I,7LO

80,143

93,030

96,923

7,357

93,212

39,567

253,395 2Ot,8O2 22t,562

Total assets

3,783

254

433

Loans and advances to customers

Financial lnvestments

3,109

42,93O

118,468

92,322

2t4,57?

Iiabilities
Due

38,229

to banks

Derivative financial instruments
Due to customers

Subordinated debt

239,051

24,803

135

33

99,556

95,29r

193

15,924

180

138,113 253,975 t2O,3O7

Total liabilities

The above analysis shows the Bank has treated all
demand customer deposits as repayable immediately,
however long term business relationships means that
this is not the case in practice. The Bank has adequate

arrangements to meet its liquidity requirements.

m,,

239,347

15,051

253,398

The majority of the inter bank funding is comprised of
a series of term deposits from the ultimate parent
Company with staggered maturities.

35. Market risk
Market risk is defined as the risk of losses on financial
instruments arising from changes in market factors.
The Bank is currently exposed to changes in interest
rate risk, foreign exchange rate risk and price risk.
Market risk may be propagated by other forms of
financial risk such as credit and market liquidity risks,
prices potentially moving adversely for a number of
reasons, including credit downgrading of securities
held, general negative economic factors, and reduced
liquidity. The key specific types of market risk
relevant to the Bank are:

.
.
.

lnterest rate risk;
Foreign exchange risk; and
Price risk on investments in debt securities.

The Bank's control framework has been designed
using a risk-based approach i.e. to address the
business risks which have been identified as being the
most relevant to the Bank as a result of the type of
business undertaken and according to the way its
operations have been organised.
The other specific market type risks are managed and
have the following potential financial impacts as

follows:
A. lnterest rote risk

.

.

Banking book: lnterest rate risk is the risk to
earnings or capital arising from movement of
interest rates. lt arises from differences between
the timing of rate changes and the timing of cash
flows (re-pricing risk); from changing rate
relationships among yield curves that affect Bank
activities (basis risk); from changing rate
relationships across the spectrum of maturities
(yield curve risk); and, from interest-rate-related
options embedded in Bank products (option risk).
The evaluation of interest rate risk must consider
the impact of complex, illiquid, hedging strategies
or products, and also the potential impact on fee
income that is sensitive to changes in interest
rates.

br

il

Trading book: The Bank does not have a trading
book.

ffi
The total sensitivity of all assets and liabilities held has
been calculated as follows:

ffi
ffi
ffi
ta-l
1$

(9721

Parallel shift in interest rates -2/o

(1,068)

dd
Kni

Parallel shift in interest rates

766

+2o/o

818

ql

*i

q
$

m,.

d

(a

35. Market risk (continued)
B, Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument denominated in foreign currency
will fluctuate in domestic currency terms due to
changes in exchange rates.
The Bank's policy is to monitor market exposures by

the risk team on a daily basis.

Ere[TUiEtD

UFT'

Net foreign currency exposures

2O,LL3

lmpact of 5% increase in foreign currency : GBP rate
lmpact of 5% decrease in foreign currency : GBP rate

t'finnElim
Net foreign currency exposures

lmpact of 5% increase in foreign currency : GBP rate
lmpact of 5% decrease in foreign currency : GBP rate

C.

Price risk on investments in debt securities

The Bank holds investments in debt securities, which
in accordance with lnternational Accounting
Standards are marked to market through other
reserves. The unrealised gains and losses on these
bonds are monitored by the Treasury and Capital
Markets traders and reported to the ALCO committee
which makes decisions on whether or not to dispose
of these assets. The policy is to hold assets with a
maximum residual maturity of 7 years and only in
markets where the Bank has experience in order to
minimise risk. A 1% price change would result in
approximately f697K (2019: f1,319K) change in fair
value of debt instruments.

81

{uil

ffi

(L,97!l

519

(1,006)

99

126l

1,006

(se)

26

.[Tt

Etrfil

ffiH

L4,795

(823)

516

(740)

4L

(25)

740

(41)

26

36. Fair Value

level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable directly (i.e, as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This

A. Foir Value Hierarchy
The fair value for financial instruments traded in active
markets at the reporting date is based on their quoted

category includes instruments valued using:

quoted market prices in active markets for similar
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar

market price or dealer price quotations (bid price for
long positions and offer price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs.

instruments in markets considered less than active;
or other valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an
active market, the fair value is determined by using

appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include net present value, comparison to
similar instruments for which market observable
prices exist and other relevant valuation models.

Level 3: inputs that are unobservable. This
category includes all instruments for which
valuation technique includes inputs not based on
observable data and the unobservable inputs have
significant effect on the instruments valuation.

Derivatives are measured at Level 2, where the fair
value is determined by applicable market forward
rates.
The Bank uses the following hierarchy for determining
and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments

The accounting policy for determining fair values is
detailed on page 41 under "Fair value measurement
and valuation process ". Financial assets included in
Level 3 are carried at amortised cost which
approximate their fair values.

by valuation technique:

.

Level 1: inputs that are quoted market prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
instruments.

EII''I-GIdD

fliririElitm

ttEIEtF]

ffi

Assets
Cash

and balances with central banks

42,930

42,93O

Amortised cost
Due from banks

t4,456

Loans and advances to customers
Fair value through

profit &

123,636

138,092

t73,I73

t73,173

Loss

Derivative financial instrument

433

433

Fair value through Other Comprehensive lncome

lnvestment securities - FVOCI

100,569

100,569

Amortised cost
lnvestment securities

-

Amort. Cost

Iiabilities
Amortised cost

32,663

Deposits from banks

243,617

276,280

Deposits from customers

99,556

99,556

Subordinated liabilities

76,L77

L6,Ll7

Fair value through

profit & loss

Derivative financial instrument

135
Page 82

135

36. Fair Value (continued)

ftre[rElirg

illllrlrt

KIEIE

iEIEIEI

ffi

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks

3,109

3,109

Amortised cost
Due from banks

31,966

53,484

215,391

Loans and advances to customers

85,493
215,391

Fair value through profit & loss

Derivative financial instrument

254

254

Fair value through Other Comprehensive lncome

lnvestment securities - FVOCI

131,889

131,889

Amortised cost
lnvestment securities

-

Amort. Cost

[iabilities
Amortised cost
Deposits from banks

242,226

263,150

Deposits from customers

95,29L

95,291

Subordinated liabilities

t5,23L

15,23t

Fair value through

profit &

20,924

Loss

Derivative financial instrument

34

All financial assets and liabilities carrled at amortised cost approximate their fair values
The carrying amount approximate its FV and inctudes onty those assets/tiabilities measured in FV in the
tabte

@
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34

36. Fair Value (continued)
Derivative financial instruments and investment in
debt securities at fair value. All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are held at historic or
amortised cost.
ln the opinion of management the value of these
assets in the financial statements represents their fair
value.

Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques
include risk-free and Libor benchmark interest rates,
discount rate, bond and equity prices.
Valuation techniques include net present value and
discounted cash flow models, comparison with similar
instruments for which observable market price exist
and other valuation models.

institutions and non-bank customers are based on
reasonable approximation of market value.
B, Deriv otive fi na ncio I i nst ru me nts

The table below shows the fair values of derivative

financial instruments, together with their notional
amounts. The notional amount, recorded gross, is the
amount of a derivative's underlying asset, reference
rate or index and is the basis upon which changes in
the value of derivatives are measured. The notional
amounts indicate the volume of transactions
outstanding at the reporting date and are indicative of
neither the market risk nor the credit risk.
For the valuation techniques used, please see above.

The objective of the valuation techniques is to arrive
at a fair value measurement that reflects the price
that would be received to sell the asset or paid to
transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

Where available, the fair value of loans and advances
is based on observable market transactions. Where
market transactions are not available, fair value is
based on reasonable approximation of market values.
For collateral-dependent impaired loans, the fair value
is measured based on the value of underlying
collateral.
The carrying amount of deposits taken from financial

ffi ffi

ffi

FfirariEtirfi]
Forward foreign exchange

101

Foreign exchange swaps

332

Derivatives held for trading

433

Forward foreign exchange

35

Foreign exchange swaps

279

Derivatives held for trading

254

@u

27,33L
76,033

95

ffi

ffi

f'flirrTiElilEl

96

34

103,364

Itrffi
4,390
76,564

34

80,954

37. Capitalmanagement

C.

A. Approoch
The Bank's policy is to maintain a sufficient capital base
to maintain stakeholders' confidence and to sustain the
future development of the business. The impact of the
level of the capital on shareholders' return is also
considered and the Bank recognises the need to
maintain a balance between the higher returns that
might be possible with greater gearing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital

position.
B. Regulatory capitol

The Bank and its individually regulated operations have
not reported any breaches on externally imposed
regulatory capital requirements during the year and
have been in compliance with the regulatory capital

Monitoring

Management uses regulatory capital ratios to monitor
its capital base. The allocation of capital between
specific operation and activities is, to a large extent,
driven by optimisation of the return achieved and the
capital allocated. The amount of capital allocated to
each operation or activity is based primarily on
regulatory capital requirements, but in some cases the
regulatory requirements do not fully reflect the varying
degree of risk associated with different activities. ln
such cases, the capital requirements may be flexed to
reflect differing risk profiles, subject to the overall level
of capital to support a particular operation or activity
not falling below the minimum required for regulatory
purposes. The process of allocating capital to specific
operations and activities is undertaken independently
of those responsible for the operation by the Credit
and Risk Committees and is subject to review by the
ALCO.

requirements throughout the year.
Tier 1 capital f67,951 (all qualifies as Common Equity
Tier 1 (CETI) capital) - it includes ordinary share capital,
retained earnings, reserves and other comprehensive
income (OCl) after adjustment for deductions for
goodwill and other regulatory adjustments relating to
items that are included in equity but are treated
differently for capital adequacy purposes.
TIER

I CAPITAI (f000'sl

Paid up capital instruments

Although maximisation of the return on risk-adjusted
capital is the principal basis used in determining how
capital is allocated within the Bank to particular
operations or activities, it is not the sole basis used for
decision making. Account is also taken of synergies with
other operations and activities, the availability of
management and other resources, and the fit of the
activity with the Bank's long-term strategic objectives.
The Bank's policies in respect of capital management
and allocation are reviewed regularly by the Board of
Directors.

Retained earnings

Other reserves
Value adjustments due to the
requirements for prudent val uation

Goodwill and other intangible asset
Property, plant and equipment and ROU

il

m,,

38. Changes in prior year figure
The Bank has restated its 31 December 2019 statement

customers instead of offsetting with prepayment. This

of profit and loss, statement of other comprehensive
income, statement of financial position, statement of

has not impact on the statement of profit or loss. The

changes in equity and statement of cash flows. This is
due to errors identified primarily from the clearing of

impact of the restatement on the results of 31
December 2019 is to reduce other assets by €807k and
reduced due to customers by f807k.

aged unreconciled items on nostro reconciliations and
The impact of the restatement on the results of 31

the accrual for certain expenses. The Bank has also
restated its 31 December 2019 statement of financial
position due to an error in the treatment of
prepayments for credit risk insurance. The portion that
was not amortised was previously credited to due to
A. Statement of profit and loss

December 2019 is: Profit for the period is f230k lower,
Total assets are €1,530k lower, Total liabilities are
€1,334K lower and Total equity is f 196K lower.

- prior yeor

odjustments

EFINEN

tr@

IIEITETEIII

lnterest and similar income

25,268

lt74l

25,094

lnterest expense and similar charges

(8,413)

(t2)

Net interest income

16,855

(186)

flif'Id

Fee and commission income

L,622

(8,425)
16,669

1,622

(2,106)

(1)

(2,1.07l,

Net fee and commission income

(484)

(1)

(48s)

Net trading income

4,26L

4,261

979

979

Fee and commission expense

Other operating (expenses) income
Net operating income

2'-,6Lt.

Personnel expenses

(7,O82')

(7,0821

(8os)

(80s)

176r)

(761l|

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-ofuse assets

Amortisation of intangible assets
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses before impairment losses

(188)

21,424

(7,928l'

(e7)

(8,025)

(16,580)

(e7l

116,6771

lmpairment and provisions

(86s)

Profit before taxation

4,166

(284)

3,892

(1,314)

54

(1,260)

2,852

(230)

2,622

Taxation

Profit for the period

4:({ ,)):,.

(86s)

'

38. Changes in prior year figures (continued)
B, Statement of Finoncial position - prior year
odjustments

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks

3,109

Due from banks

85,601

Derivative financial instruments

-

(108)

254

Loans and advances to customers

lnvestments securities

3,108

2L6,O52

FVOCI

85,493

254
(661)

2L5,39L

131,889

131,889

5,363

5,363

tL,Lg2

71,L82

Deferred tax assets

5,951

5,951

Other assets

8,478

(761)

7,7L7

Total assets

467,779

(1,5301

466,248

Property,Plant and Equipment and Right -of-use Assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets

liabilities and equlty
Due to banks

Derivative financial instruments

263,150

263,150

34

34

Due to customers

96,774

(1,483)

95,29L

Other liabilities

7L,574

L48

tL,722

Subordinated debt

15,23L

Total liabilities

386,763

15,231
(1,3351

385,428

Equity attributable to equity holders of parent
Share capital

Other reserves
Accumulated losses

Totalequity
Total llabilltles and equlty

KR,,

to2,t73

LOz,L73

1,t72

L,L72

(22,3291

(1e5)

(22,5251

81,016

(1e61

80,820

467,778

(1,530)

466,248

38. Changes in prior year figures (continued)
C. Stotentent of cosh flow - prior yeor odjustments
Ercfrn

xR?!ll

EGSETEEf,EIE

Cash flows from continui ne oberatins activities
A

Profit before tax

4,'J,66

(284\

3,882

Adjustments for:
Net interest income

B

lnterest received

B

lnterest paid

c

Change in operatine assets

B,H

Chanse in operatins liabilities

B,H

Other items included in orofit before tax

16,855

D

Corporation tax oaid

28,220

24,090

8,944

(18,63s)

(9,691)

10,809

31,409

42,218

(6,9s6)

(119,601)

870

(2,41s)

(1,549)

(7,3r4)

878

(436)

(76,405)

Net cash flows qenerated bv continuine oDeratins activities

(16,669)

(4,130)

(1.1.2,6Os]|

B,E,F

(33,s24)

(1,351)

177,7561

Cash flows from investine activities
(

Purchase of financial investments
E

Proceeds from sales of financial investments
Purchase of orooertv and eo ut ome nt
Purchase of intaneible assets

Net cash flows senerated bv investine activities

(151,190)

151,190)
185,231

1,5 19

186,750

(81)

(81)

(333)

(333)

33,627

1,519

(617)

61-7

35,146

Cash flows from financine activities

Group subordinated debt

F

Repavment of lease principal

G

(6L7l|

Net cash flows penerated bv fina ncrnp activities

(43,3es)

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash eo uivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 Januarv

90,89s

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December

47,500

The Bank has restated its 3L December 2019 statement of
cash flows. This is due to errors identified as the
presentation did not comply with the requirements of |AST
The presentation in the 2020 cash flow has been updated

to comply with

IAS 7.

E

This reconciles to the prior period adjustments in the
Statement of Profit or Loss as disclosed on page 86
of the financial statements.

B.

To disclose separately cash interest received. To
include in other items included in profit before tax
foreign exchange changes.

C.
D.

To disclose separately cash interest paid.
To disclose the actual corporation tax paid.

(877\

(250)

(877l,

(e2)

(43,487)
90,895

(e2)

47,408

To exclude the amortization for the premium and
discount as proceeds from sale of investments,
included now in other items included in profit before
tax.

F

To exclude the impact of foreign exchange on
subordinated debt, included now in other items
included in profit before tax.

G

To disclose in financing cash flows the actual lease

Further detail is provided below:

A.

(877]'

payments under
H

fi
.( ;)",,

IFRS 16.

To correct for the treatment of prepayments for
credit risk insurance. The portion that was not
amortised was previously credited to due to

customers instead of offsetting with prepayment..

.
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INTERNATIONAL

BANK OF AFRICA United Kingdom plc

Contact us

26 Upper Brook Street,

Tel. +44 (Ol2o7 429 5500

Mayfair - London W1K 7QE

info@bmce-intl.co.uk

United Kingdom
Tel. +44 (O)2O7 429 5500

Website BANK OF AFRICA United Kingdom ptc

Fax. +44 (O) 2O7 248 8595
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